
Meeting Minutes SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, March 2nd, 2010.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




John Bernard, Vice-Chairperson 



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Steven Kessler, Board Member 



Ivan Kline, Board Member




Susan Todd, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




Edward Vergano, Department of Technical Services 




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney




Mr. Jeff Rothfeder, CAC member 



Chris Kehoe, Planning Department  

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there will be no changes to the agenda tonight except that we will probably take out a quarter the ‘new business’ for tonight and place that up before ‘correspondence.’  That would be a major change to the agenda.  We anticipate that we will be spending a little bit more time on some of the correspondence and it would be, in my opinion, unfair to have the people who want to be standing here for all of about a minute to have to wait that length of time to have their case heard.  We will make that change.


*



*



*

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JANUARY 13, 2010
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked can I have a motion to approve the minutes of January 13th?
So moved.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question I have corrections I’m submitting.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
RESOLUTIONS

PB 14-06    a.
Application of Richard Heinzer for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 2 lot minor subdivision of a 39,480 sq. ft. parcel of land located on the east side of Crumb Place, approximately 200 feet south of Ogden Avenue, as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan Prepared for Richard Heinzer” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated April 22, 2009 and on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Proposed Site Conditions Plan” prepared by James DeLalia, RLA, latest revision dated November 17, 2008.
Mr. Robert Foley stated I recuse myself.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated my colleague Brad Schwartz was here during the work session.  We obviously are aware of the discussions that you had publicly.  We know you retired into executive session, I assume, to discuss among possibly other matters this.  We’re happy to engage in a dialogue Madame Chairperson if you would like as to the reasons why we still feel as we have felt all along, that we do satisfy the criteria of the Steep Slopes Ordinance, that this would be a prudent decision for your Board to make to permit simply a 2 lot subdivision.  You’ve heard this application for probably the better part of three years.  We are anxious for your Board to conduct your deliberations and to vote.  We do have an understanding with Mr. Klarl that I know you have a draft Resolution before you tonight of approval.  Whether you have the votes for that remains to be seen, but we’re prepared to discuss that Resolution with you.  We’re also prepared to make sure with Mr. Mastromonaco’s assistance that you understand from an engineering and technical standpoint why we believe we can sufficiently mitigate any potential adverse impacts and why we believe two lots, in many ways, will afford more protection than one.  At the least of which is the substantial no disturbance, no build area that my client has agreed to impose on the 30% slopes, the vast majority of the second lot and the only 30% slope area that’s impacted as a result of various iterations that we’re encouraged by your Board and your professional staff, the only 30% disturbance is to get into this site whether my client builds one big house, one little house or two houses, we’ve got to cross the same area and the same slopes.  With that as a very brief intro, I would strongly encourage your Board to permit this application to move forward, grant preliminary subdivision approval and there may be some remaining details that can be resolved between preliminary and final. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I hear you but I think that members of this Board have pretty much made up their minds that we can talk about it if you’d like but I think that you might want to hear some opinions of some of the Board members and then we would follow along that line of discussion.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think if someone moves for the adoption of the Resolution I’ll speak on the question.  It’s not a public hearing so I don’t want to engage in a debate with the applicant or hear from the public today.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I’d like to make a motion to adopt Resolution number 17-10 with the attached 13 conditions, seconded.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated on the question, I intend to vote against the Resolution primarily because I don’t think the applicant can meet it’s burden under the Steep Slopes Ordinance under which it’s not just slopes in excess of 30% that are regulated, that impression has been given sometimes by the applicant at these meetings or written submissions, it’s anything in excess of 15% that is regulated, that requires the permit and they have the burden to show that it’s the minimum disturbance of steep slopes necessary to have a reasonable use of the property which to me translates into the question of whether a 1 lot use of this property is reasonable.  I believe under the circumstances, given the nature of this property that it is.  I do believe that a 1 lot can be set up here so as to substantially reduce the amount of steep slope disturbance which right now is 17,670 square feet which is almost one half of the entire lot.  I also have some concerns particularly with the second lot under the lines upon storm water infiltrators requiring maintenance over time and the possible adverse impact on the area below which of course is one of the very reasons for the Steep Slopes Ordinance in the first place so as to reduce disturbance in areas like this in my view.  Because of that I intend to vote ‘no’ on this Resolution.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I also intend to vote ‘no’ on this.  I concur with what Ivan has said about the Steep Slopes Law and how this application has attempted valiantly to try to meet the requirements of it but I, for one, do not feel comfortable with the plans.  I’ve been to the site numerous times.  I find it very tight.  You can build anything but is it the right place to build it?  I don’t feel it is so that is why I’m voting ‘no’. 

Mr. John Bernard stated I do concur with my fellow Board members that I will also be voting ‘no’ for this application.  The drainage issues are primary.  The steep slopes issues – this entire site, if you look at it in terms of just one slope, from one corner to the next corner, you have more than a 60 foot variation. In other words, on the down corner you could build a six story building and still not be at the height of the opposing corner.  To me, that’s steep.  I understand that from an engineering standpoint it can be built, anything can be built, it doesn’t make it the right place to build 2 maybe even 1 home.  I’ll be voting ‘no’. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I would vote in favor of the application.  My concern or comparison point is how much control will the Town have over the development of this sensitive property and I feel that given the controls that would be in place for a Site Plan Approval we would be able to exert more control over how this property is developed even though they were 2 houses, rather than give up some of that control and allow the applicant to build as of right a house of whatever dimensions wish he would like.  I feel I’m in favor of exerting more control.  I think we’d have a better project and less negative impact to the important, environmentally sensitive property that’s there. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I would also vote in favor.  I concur with Mr. Bianchi.  I think the point here, as he stated, is that under the subdivision approval there are things that we are able to do in this approval in terms of the conservation easements, the snow removal areas and other things that I think would benefit all of Crumb Place as part of this application.  Certainly now, the applicant can and perhaps will come in with a Building Permit to build one house and if that’s the case I think we lose a lot of those things that we worked hard here for over the last couple of years to get included into this approval.  So, I would also vote to approve this application.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that takes care of everyone except myself and I think I had initially thought – actually, initially I was not at all inclined to vote favorably and then at one point I think I sort of allowed myself to think that this could probably happen and it might be better if we at least had one house there and the Town had certain discretion about how things would develop on that particular lot.  Then, I drive around sometimes and I see the handiworks of people who have been told that they shouldn’t or can’t do certain things and they go right ahead and do them some time down the line and of course the impact on the land and the people in the community is sometimes tragic.  I talked myself out of leaning to vote ‘yes’ so I will be voting ‘no’.  I don’t think that I can really vote ‘yes’ and feel good about voting ‘yes’ for this particular project.  I think that it’s very tight, it’s very steep.  Who knows what will happen on these lots if we walk away and I have to give it to you we have here that “there would be a recording of declaration of perpetual duration providing that no disturbance, etc. should occur.”  We all want to accept these things in good faith and say “okay, this should work” if people really adhere to these restrictions but I know that over time, 6 years, 7 years down the road somebody wants something in the back yard, or the side yard, or wherever and they start moving dirt.  They don’t come and ask for permission and so you have situations all over this Town where people do that and we all know that this happens.  Given how steep the lot is and how tight everything is, even with the turnaround, my question would be can it really be accomplished without in a sense exacerbating a situation there, creating some additional problems that can’t really be corrected?  You’d make the turnaround, the hammerhead that you’re talking about, but you have to move things and tighten up a road so tight that there’s no access beyond just a truck going down and being able to turn around.  Maybe that creates a problem of some kind, I don’t really know, I’m not an engineer, I always say that but I’m not sure that this is the best way to go about it.  If you’re only doing one thing maybe, but I just can’t go there.  I’m voting ‘no’ for this.  I don’t think it’ll work. 
Mr. David Steinmetz stated if I can response very briefly since you don’t actually have a Resolution in front of you tonight and I’m not confident that I’m going to convince two of you to change your votes but on behalf of my client I feel duty-bound to at least response very briefly.  I don’t want to take up too much of your time but I want the record to be clear.  Mr. Kline, one of the reasons we focused on 30% slopes, and I feel it’s a little unfair for you to say “we were disingenuous or misleading” we are very well aware that the Code is 15% slopes.  I stand in front of you and this Board on way too many applications with 15% slopes.  The reason we’ve focused, and that’s because this Town has a lot of 15% and greater slopes as much of Northern Westchester does, the reason we focused on 30% was because you in particular, a year ago maybe even more, told us how important that was in your thinking at the time of why this was a “serious application with potential serious sedimentation, erosion control and real true slope related impacts” as a result of your comments in particular my client and his engineer re-drafted this application 3 or 4 times to completely eliminate all 30% slope impacts where there had previously been 30% slope impacts with the exception of the entrance.  I want to make that clear.  We’re very well aware that there’s 15% slope impacts and interestingly at the last meeting just for the Board’s benefit we shared with you an area map that had been suggested that we look at simply to put Crumb Place and the entire neighborhood in context.  The entire neighborhood and all of the houses of the neighbors who live there are dominated by 15% slopes.  We’re not taking an isolated tough lot in a wonderfully flat neighborhood, in fact, we’re taking a neighborhood that has successfully been developed in over 30, 40, 50 years co-existed on 15% slopes of greater, that’s number one.  2) Ms. Todd, I appreciate your acknowledgment and Mr. Bernard of the good engineers and good builders can build basically anything and probably Europe shows that in terms of the magnitude of development on slopes, maybe more so than much of this Country.  But, the issue Ms. Todd that you indicated that this is not the right place, I just want to make one simple point, we are entirely zoning compliant and in fact, both of these lots are larger than they need to be under zoning and larger than most of the surrounding area.  In terms of the right place, when I think of place in zoning I think of zoning district and minimum lot area.  In terms of Slope Permits, we’re allowed to get a Slope Permit.  In fact, virtually every house in that neighborhood were to be built today would require a Slope Permit just like my client is asking for.  I appreciate the comments of Mr. Bianchi and Mr. Kessler because I think they’re accurate.  I think it would be an unfortunate reality for this Town for you to end up with one house because you will not, and the neighbors would unfortunately will not get some of the degree of protection that you have worked real hard and your staff has worked real hard to get as a result of this proposed subdivision.  My client has voluntarily agreed to innumerable things some of which the Chair has indicated to be recorded.  Others are on the Plat.  You will not get those if there’s one house here and very cautiously and very carefully Mr. Vergano was honest with you at numerous work sessions where he explained the history of this Town on single lots and really what his latitude is.  In terms of where we are, I just want to remind you before you ultimately have a Resolution prepared, you hired at my client’s expense outside consulting engineers in addition to Mr. Vergano.  We satisfied everything that was raised and you ultimately got a favorable report and letter from Charles Cells.  In addition, Kathleen Burleson, your Director of Technical Services gave us numerous comments about K-turns, turnarounds which the Chair indicated, snow storage, we offered and we agreed after a lot of different engineering techniques to put in those items, walls, things that you won’t get with a single lot.  In fact, I’ve seen photographs of the recent snow storms that we all had to deal with and I’m very well aware that some of you have seen them too, Crumb Place would probably receive a significant benefit if there were a snow storage area that we’ve agreed to impose and a turnaround so Ms. Burleson’s snow plows and garbage trucks can go down to the end of the block and K-turn and turn around and come back out and maybe pull some of the snow out of there that’s sitting at the end of Crumb Place.  You don’t get that with a single lot.  The last thing that I want to mention; I’ve spent too many years in front of this Board discussing with you affordable housing and appropriate housing stock, what an opportunity to have two more modest, and more potentially affordable homes than you will should you and/or the courts ultimately determine that there would only be one house here.  To me, it’s somewhat antithetical in numerous discussions that I’ve had with this Board, my client as you know in his last letter to you agreed to impose size restrictions on the two houses to ensure even more marketability and affordability.  I’m saddened that after three years and so many gyrations by Mr. Mastromonaco where we really thought we satisfied your outside consultants and I don’t want to put your staff in an awkward position, but with all due respect for the benefit of the record, they criticize a lot of my client’s applications on a lot of matters and they raise a lot of issues, on this one, in the end I believe we’ve satisfied your professional staff. I’m left at a loss to explain to my client why you guys ultimately rule against them other than you just don’t like building on slopes.  I understand you may not like it but unless the record shows that there are adverse impacts that were not mitigating it and with all due respect I’m certain Mr. Kline doesn’t want to debate that though he probably would love to debate it, we believe we’ve actually done that and that’s why you’ve received an outside engineering report from Cells that bears that out.  I would ask you to reconsider.  I would ask the four members that have articulated an adverse position to consider what Mr. Kessler and Mr. Bianchi said and I don’t want to waste any more of your time.  Thank you for listening.
Ms. Loretta Taylor all in favor? I think we’re going to have to poll.  This is a motion to approve the Resolution.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked Mr. Kline; no, Mr. Kessler; yes, Mr. Bianchi; yes, Chairwoman Taylor; no, Mr. Bernard; yes, Ms. Todd; no.  Three to three. 
Mr. Ivan Kline stated I would move to bring this back with a disapproving Resolution at the April meeting.  I would like to discuss this again then.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you want to discuss this again? 

Mr. Ivan Kline responded as a Resolution on the question with a disapproving Resolution in front of us in April.  I want staff to prepare a disapproving Resolution.  I understand we just split 3-3, that means it’s no action, the Resolution is not approved.  I’d like to bring it back in April with staff having prepared a disapproving Resolution.  I’d like to put it up for discussion by the Board on the question and see if we get four votes. 

Mr. John Klarl stated just to follow up on Mr. Kline’s request, we have a letter from Zarin and Steinmetz dated February 19th, 2010 which reflects the agreement we have with the applicant which says “in addition, if the Board chooses to deny the application, Mr. Heinzer will extend the Board’s time to make a determination on the application to April 7th, 2010 in order for staff to have sufficient time to prepare a denied Resolution.”  We have that written understanding with the applicant. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that is correct Mr. Klarl accurately reports and I would just add to that letter and that procedural discussion we’ve had, in light of the posture that you’re in tonight which is not something we had hoped or necessarily anticipated would occur, if there is anything that the three dissenters have articulated -- if there’s anything that you believe my client and our team can still do that we have not done we would most appreciate the opportunity to try to end this matter amicably and appropriately rather than leaving my clients in a more difficult and potentially litigious situation. 

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated at this point we will come back next month with a disapproving Resolution and have the discussion around the specific points of that particular Resolution.

PB 15-07    b.
Application of Debra Guiffre for Final Plat Approval for a 2 lot minor subdivision of a 1.92 acre parcel of property located on the south side of School Road at the intersection of Baron De Hirsch Road as shown on a Final plat entitled “Subdivision of Property prepared for Debra A. Guiffre” prepared by Donnelly Land Surveying, P.C., dated October 12, 2009 and 2 page set of drawings entitled “Improvement Plan prepared for Debra Guiffre” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco. P.E. latest revision dated October 6, 2009.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairperson I move that we adopt Resolution number 17-10, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*

PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED)

PB 1-07      a.
Public Hearing: Application of Mark Giordano, for the property of Ruth Cohen, for Preliminary Plat approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 6 lot major subdivision of  a 23.4 acre parcel of land located on the south side of Upland Lane, south of Mt. Airy Road, as shown on a  drawing entitled “Alternate Layout “A” Preliminary Plat,  Proposed Subdivision of Upland Estates” , and “Alternate Layout “A” Tree Preservation Plan”, latest revision dated August 20, 2009, and “Watershed Map” dated August 19, 2009 all prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. and a drawing entitled “Landscape Plan for the Development, Upland Estates” prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc. dated August 20, 2009 (THIS PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE ADJOURNED AT THE REQUEST OF THE TOWN’S OUTSIDE LEGAL COUNSEL).


Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have 2 people who will be recused for this.  We are going to adjourn this but if there’s anybody here who would like to speak to this particular issue you can feel free to come up and voice your comments.  I want to acknowledge for the record that we did receive some additional materials in opposition to this application from Ms. Whalen, Ms. Stresfield-Leitner and the Neblos, this is in addition to other materials that are already in there by the same individuals or at least 2 of the same individuals and a host of other people from Upland Lane.  We just want to put that in the record that we did get your communiqué and we will put them in the record.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated just for the record we’re adjourning this, as you know we’ve hired outside council.  Our council is obviously recused from this.  We’ve hired outside council to review this fundamental issue of Upland Lane and the ownership and the rights to develop that and our outside council needs more time to review that very important issue so that’s why we are adjourning this because we would like to have that information before us since it’s so fundamental to this application. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re going to adjourn this to April and we’ll see you all at that point. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we adjourn until the April 6th meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*

PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED)

PB 13-05    a.
Application and Final Environmental Impact Statement latest revision dated January 14, 2010 by  Kirquel Development Ltd. for Preliminary Plat Approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a 22 lot major subdivision of 52.78 acres of property located on the west side of Lexington Ave. and at the south end of Mill Court as shown on a 10 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development and Subdivision for Residences at Mill Court Crossing” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated September 22, 2008.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  If there is anybody here who would like to come up and address whatever concerns you have please feel free to do so. 
Mr. Daniel Kaye presented himself to the Board and stated the Assistant Chief for EMS for the Mohegan Volunteer Ambulance Corps.  In response to a letter that we had written June 5th, 2007 asking for a $25,000 donation to the Emergency Medical Services, the final impact study referring to response 3.8-1 “the DEIS fiscal analysis was rerun and it is included in the FEIS appendix L.  The analysis shows that the revenues to the Mohegan Fire is projected to increase from $937 to $15,936 each year or more than the $25,000 suggested within two years of project completion.  This substantial increase can be expected to offset any need for additional equipment or man power by the Mohegan Fire that could be attributed to the project.”  I’d like to comment that this in fact is an error, in fact, we receive no funding from the Mohegan Fire Department.  Mohegan Fire Department and Mohegan Ambulance Corps although share a common structure are two separate organizations.  There are no transfer of funds between the two.  We do not receive any funding from them and stand on our own.  On page 1-12 under the hospital’s healthcare and ambulance services and social services the report states “the reduction of persons from 98 as in the DEIS to 75 as in the revised proposal any alternate would not require any significant emergency services staff increase.  If minimal staff increases are required the cost would be more than offset by additional tax revenues generated through property taxes.”  This again is incorrect, the Mohegan Ambulance Corps does not receive any tax revenue.  The only governmental assistance we’ve received is a modest donation from the Town of Cortlandt towards our worker’s compensation insurance policy beyond that we’ve received no tax revenue.  Again, we stand on our own and do soft billing during after patient care.

Mr. John Bernard stated if I may, just for the record, this Board has in the past in recognition of what you’re saying, split fees between the Ambulance Corps, the EMS Service and the Fire Department.  I think that would probably be in agreement if this application went forward that we could do the same thing.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated that would be a contribution but I’m not sure that one is being offered at this point but that’s for a later discussion.  

Mr. John Potts presented himself to the Board and stated I live at 38 Trolley Road.  I’m here with my wife tonight and I’d like to read some comments that I have on the Kirquel proposal.  “The FEIS report does not contain adequate responses to the issues I’ve raised and discussed when I discussed current traffic and water runoff problems at a public meeting in 2007.  The responses to those issues listed in section 3.5 relating to traffic are simply re-statements of the conclusions reached in a traffic study that was submitted in 2006 by TRC Raymond Keyes a consulting firm hired by Kirquel Corporation.  The study predicted that there would be no significant impact on road traffic on Red Mill and surrounding roads during and following the proposed project construction.  I find the conclusion in the FEIS report regarding the impact on traffic to be inconsistent with what we are actually experiencing now.  At the time, the TRC study was released we were facing some very serious traffic problems on Red Mill and adjoining roads that have to do with traffic volume, traffic noise, and traffic safety.  Well, those problems have gotten worse over the years.  Initially, I couldn’t find the TRC report by the way and I didn’t find it in the FEIS report although there were citations in it and it wasn’t posted on the Town’s website so I called Chris Kehoe, and I want to thank him for giving me a copy of the DEIS.  I’m not that familiar with these terms, which had the study attached.  I’m a scientist and an engineering manager and normally I’m pretty busy so I appreciate having things on the web that I can download and read at my convenience.  I think Planning should consider making all the pertinent documents for every project available on the website.  In case you haven’t yet tried to read it, there are 221 pages in the TRC report with lots of data tables and 169 page appendix full of computer-generated data.  This study serves as the soul basis of the assessment of traffic impact.  Let me briefly explain what I learned by reading the report.  How was the study done?  And this is pretty involved: TRC took intersection traffic data collected from most of the surrounding road intersections at peak traffic hours over a two-day period in 2005, added road characteristics, lane dimensions and fed all of that information into a can traffic engineering computer program to generate estimates of the intersection delay time expected in 2006 then they increased those volumes by 2% annually to estimate the change in delay times expected when the project was slated to be finished in 2007.  Finally, they added to that number a guess at the additional volume of cars expected from the finished development and recalculated the intersection delay times.  All that number crunching resulted in estimated intersection delay times that didn’t change much and that fact was then taken as proof that there would be no impact on traffic as a result of the development.  However, the intersection delay time dated that appears in all of those report tables are only computer-generated estimates.  That’s not real data and real data was not even used to check computer-generated time delays.  What’s wrong with that approach for traffic studies?  The volume data used in the study is likely too low.  The intersection of Strawberry and Route 6 was not even included in that study.  A North County News traffic report in 2009 stated that Yorktown counted 148,000 cars on Strawberry Road over 14 days averaging 10,588 cars per day moving at speeds in excess of the speed limit.  Changes in the Strawberry, Lexington, Red Mill intersection geometry will likely account for much larger future increases in Red Mill traffic volume than the TRC estimates of 2% compounded annually.  It seems that the Red Mill, Strawberry, Lexington intersection is a traffic flood gate.  Other things that are wrong with the traffic studies, day-to-day traffic variability cannot be determined from one day traffic counts.  Using only one traffic factor like intersection delay times to assess impact makes the report a biased traffic study.  Weather should have been included, it affects road characteristics.  I live on Trolley Road, it’s listed in that report a class C with average 21 feet and shorter width between 1 and 3 feet because of the snow I measured the snow on Monday at 12 to 13 feet without any shoulder.  Measured speed should be included in any traffic assessment since that factor along with increased traffic volume impacts traffic safety.  Finally, vehicular noise affects our health, that ‘thump, thump, thump’ of tires on the road travels very long distances and can be heard through closed windows, closed doors, and even walls.  It impacts the quality of our lives.  I think it would be wrong to presume that no traffic impact will result from the Kirquel Development as suggested by the TRC traffic study.  I recommend that the Planning Board not approve any major building project in this section of Town until the existing serious traffic issues are adequately resolved.”  Thank you. 
Mr. Eric Consolazio presented himself and stated I live on Stonefield Court.  I don’t live on Mill Court but I live off of Red Mill Road.  I understand the very beautiful picture that you have up here and all the numbers and the studies that went behind it but what I’ll talk to you tonight about is what I hear, what I see, and what I smell on Red Mill Road.  I want to deal with two subjects, one very briefly that being the runoff and the second being the safety, particularly the safety of the residents along Red Mill Road and the safety of anyone in Cortlandt who travels along Red Mill Road.  The first is the runoff.  We know that there have been runoff problems in the past and although myself in Stonefield Court may not bear the brunt of the runoff, we see it, we experience it, and we feel pain for those folks at the bottom of the road, particularly those on Trolley Road who are really at the mercy of what happens uphill.  There’s been lots of talk and there’s been lots of action to try and mitigate what has been water collection and runoff problems.  I’m not sure if we can talk here about how we can mitigate this with this development and how more development is going to be able to give us less runoff.  What I will tell you is, on a day when there is more than one day of rain, on a rainy week, I can go up Red Mill Road and from Trolley on up to my road I can smell the sewage, the effluent that does not percolate from the septic systems in the homes at the bottom of the roads.  Maybe there’s no measurement for that, but I can smell it.  I’m going to get off of the actual talk of the runoff, talk of the water collection because there’s a greater issue that I really want to focus on and that is the safety of the people that not only live on that road but travel on that road.  There’s going to be an addition – and I know there’s been mitigating plans to try and reduce the number of cars that come in out of Mill Court but anybody who’s experienced Red Mill Road knows that Mill Court is around a blind curve descending towards Mill Court.  Anyone coming down that road who has to stop short will have a great deal of difficulty avoiding anybody trying to make a reasonable maneuver out of there.  I’m lucky, I’m Stonefield Court.  Stonefield Court actually has some relatively good visibility either way and we still have difficulty getting out onto Red Mill Road on a daily basis, particularly during rush hour.  On Mill Court, I find it difficult to believe that this additional traffic is not going to result in additional injuries or additional death.  I don’t want to go to the hospital, my brother-in-law lives on that road, I do not want to visit my brother-in-law, his daughter or his wife in the hospital.  I don’t want to go to their gravesite.  I believe that will happen as you increase all this volume on that road.  That road is a danger.  I challenge anyone in Cortlandt to find a more hazardous, a more winding road that bears as much traffic as Red Mill Road does.  I know that the Board has gone through great lengths to make sure that there’s been due diligence done on that property and like I said, I have nothing but respect for the efforts of the Board over the past few years to make sure that there are controls in place, not only environmentally but also from a traffic perspective.  What I call on you is different, I call for a Moratorium on development on Red Mill Road until the safety problems on that road, and the volume problems on that road can be mitigated.  Not one more car should be placed on that road until we identify and address what happens there.  If you’ve ever gone down that road, there are now barriers that are there, there are signs, there are arrows, there are flashing lights, everything to try and keep people from crashing.  I hear every day and particularly every weekend, the screeching of tires down that road and I know that it’s very nice that people want to donate dollars to EMS, I don’t want EMS to spend one more minute on that darn road.  They spend too much time on there already.  Thank you very much, I very much appreciate your indulgence, I very much appreciate the job that the Board has done.  I know that the folks who are actually applying for the Permit are doing everything they can to be able to get a reasonable development in here but we all have to take a step back and realize that there’s a point at which we deny things around here for quality of life, this is life, this is not only quality of life but safety of life.  I very much want to thank you and thank you very much for the privilege of having me speak here tonight. 
Mr. Don Canfield presented himself to the Board and stated I live on 155 Red Mill Road.  I have a 5 acre plot that goes from Red Mill Road and backs onto the property.  My driveway, just for other reference, is right across the street from Stonefield Court so I’m very familiar with what he’s saying about getting out of Stonefield Court.  I’ve got the opposite problem because I live on the other side of the curve that he has visibility on.  I have none.  The visibility of my road is very similar to the visibility in Mill Court, but that’s not what I wanted to talk about right now.  I have a bunch of things that I wanted to say.  I’m sorry that there’s so many different things.  I got a letter last Friday, the 19th, it was dated the 11th telling me about this, giving me reference that there was a copy of the FEIS on line and there were copies in libraries and there were copies at the Town Hall.  I didn’t check Town Hall, I downloaded the copy from the website, I read it, and realized after reading about the first 5 pages of the 57 page report, that’s just the report, that almost the rest of it referred back to the DEIS and it says specifically that the DEIS is included as part of the FEIS.  I don’t know where I could go get a copy of that except that I have the one that I downloaded three years ago so I was able to cross-reference some things.  The information to really fully be prepared to come to this thing wasn’t available.  It was made available, what was available was made available rather late.  I look around here and I know that there are people who wanted to be here, who couldn’t be here, their schedule wouldn’t allow them.  I would hope that you might keep this hearing open for a couple more meetings so that everyone could be heard.  The most important issue on this thing is water, is drainage and it is not about runoff, it’s about ground water.  Everything that I read in this report it talks about any sort of runoff and water is all about runoff.  They talk about how they’ve mitigated runoff.  They talk about how they’ve increased the imperviousness of the site so that there will be less infiltration of the water into the ground.  In practically the next paragraph they say we’ve done this by the use of containment ponds and by dry wells.  Well, what are those?  Those are just another way of redirecting the infiltration into the ground water.  So, they’re taking the surface water, they’re redirecting it into the ground water then comes out below that property.  In my property for example, I have a 5 acre plot from about November until about May as it is now, a good acre of that you can’t even walk across without being in mud up to your ankles.  That’s the way it goes.  If this ground water is increased, this thing could become a wetland then I’d lose more of my property.  If any of you have driven up Red Mill Road in the winter time, you’ll know that in front of 143 Red Mill Road there’s frequently an ice stand, that’s this water.  This water comes out of the ground on my property, flows down across 143’s property, out their driveway, is more than can be absorbed by the drainage system and freezes.  If that becomes a year-round thing than somehow that new stream is going to have to be dealt with.  If this report continues to talk about surface water, doesn’t address the ground water issue, yet they continue to pump water into the ground water through their dry wells I just want to know what’s going to happen when I suddenly have a stream running through my house, my property, what’s going to happen if that ground water expands to start affecting the foundation of my house and the foundation of my pool and three years from now they’re gone, what do I do?  How is this thing going to be addressed?  The next thing I want to talk about is the ambulance letter stuck out at me too, exactly the point that the ambulance people made but there was one more thing in that letter that they didn’t mention that’s about traffic.  All these traffic reports that was so eloquently stated earlier by another person seemed to have not quite a good handle on reality.  One of the statements in the letter from the Ambulance Department says that they’re concerned about “the impact of increased traffic on Red Mill Road, a road that already is a scene of many motor vehicle incidents.”  I think the empirical knowledge of that is significant and needs to be considered rather than looking at just pure computer models.  Next, environmentally, in the FEIS the majority of which is a question/response format, I had mentioned something about environmental impact at the previous DEIS hearing mentioning that I had seen various wild life and the response was pretty much unresponsive to anything about that.  I’m sorry I might be taking that a little personally but they pretty much – one of the statements that I had made I hadn’t seen anything for a week and I think the tone of the FEIS seemed to think that since I hadn’t seen anything in a week, then there’s nothing there.  It seemed that my comments were insignificant.  They also talked about in the DEIS which is part of the FEIS the terrestrial and aquatic ecology which that area has, and they have a big list of animals that might live up there and they have a few of them checked off that things that their people saw and as somebody who wanders around that area and its property adjoins it, I can tell for a fact that most of the animals that they list on this thing are definitely there most notably the red fox, the possum, little brown bat, milk snake, wild turkey, Downey woodpecker, northern flicker, red tailed hawk, American robin, northern mocking bird, American questrel, goshawk, various types of owls, there’s an amazing amount of wildlife up there.  The other one that I felt was kind of glossed over was the fact that – I understand that there’s eastern boxed turtle is something that is of some concern and I seem to stumble across those a couple times a year, the most recent which was last October.  I’m kind of reluctant to say that I haven’t seen any in the past week, the way my comments were used the last time but I think that’s a reasonable statement that I wouldn’t have seen an eastern boxed turtles wandering around.  The two other concerns that I had are concerns that are about Mill Court because specific things in the FEIS do directly address my property even though it is more specifically toward Mill Court.  One was sewers: they talk about the intention to develop a Mill Court sewer district, to have the Town develop a Mill Court sewer district and the question that leapt out in my mind of that was when they say that the Town is going to have a Mill Court sewer district, who pays for that? Is that we the Town or is that the developer?  I just want to make sure that if something is being developed – it’s a question that isn’t clear in the FEIS.  Related to that as it says that hook ups will be available for all of the people along Mill Court, I don’t know where this sewer is supposed to run, but from what they’re saying it’s going to hook into Mill Court which would mean it would come down Mill Court, go down Red Mill Road then hook into Stonefield Court, unless they’re going to start cutting across people’s property.  It’s a tremendous amount of disruption again, to this peaceful country road called Red Mill Road.  I was curious about the path of the thing.  It also says that everybody along that path will be allowed to hook up to it.  There will be T connections and I’m wondering if that statement is they will be allowed to hook up to it means that eventually that will be required to hook up to it and if we’re required to hook up to it, me with my 400 foot distance from house to the road, who pays for that?  I think I know the answer to that question.  Lastly about Mill Court is kind of like part and parcel of the Red Mill Road issue but it has more to do with the busses.  If you’re going to take busses off of Mill Court and put them onto Red Mill Road, it just seems to me to be disastrous.  They speak about occasionally in this document about sight lines.  Mostly about the driveways on Lexington Avenue but the sight lines from Mill Court onto Red Mill Road are pretty bad.  They mention in some of the places some numbers that I think came from an official document, I found those same numbers in the New State Department of Transportation Highway Design manual revision 50, they say that a 30 mph stop sign intersection for a truck, which is more significant than a car for busses, needs to have a sight line distance to the left of 445 feet and to the right 390 feet.  Everybody who goes anywhere near Red Mill Road knows that 30 miles an hour is not what people drive on that road.  At 40 mph those distances increase to on the left 565 feet and on the right 518 feet.  I went out there today and I did a rough measurement of what I could see of the distances using a laser range finder so it’s a pretty accurate measurement although I don’t know if I measured it absolutely correctly, but what I came up with was a left distance of 250 feet and a right distance of 350 feet.  I have a couple of photographs if it matters that shows where I measured from and what I saw and it’s pretty frightening.  Maybe I’m splitting hairs by trying to take this a little bit farther but I think when you sit there and you say “well it’s a 30 mph speed limit and this is what they allow us to get away with and this is what we can do,” the first thing that goes through my mind is we’re talking about school busses.  From what I can see, from what I read from this report, it just doesn’t seem realistic to me some of the numbers that they’re coming up with in terms of traffic and the whole report seems to be that way a lot of subjective matter.  It just seems that you read something and you see a question raised and they answer a different question.  The great example of that is exactly what the ambulance people showed up.  They bring up a question about the ambulance and they answer a question about the Fire Department.  You bring up a question about ground water they answer a question about surface water.  It just doesn’t seem to be very well thought out and it seems to be a lot of noise that’s trying to distract from what people are really trying to find out.  These photographs are really quick and down and dirty stuff that I took today.  Would you like them?  How should I present them to you? 
Mr. John Bernard responded why don’t you bring them down and we’ll pass them down.

Mr. Don Canfield stated what they have is on the back it says where it’s from.  What they are is: this first picture is a picture of standing in the middle of Mill Court looking at Red Mill Road and the significant thing in this photograph is the stop line for the stop sign.  That stop line is 15 feet from the edge of the roadway and it’s on that stop line that I took the other photographs and made the measurements. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked can you hold it up, each one?

Mr. Don Canfield stated here’s the sign, there’s the stop line.  This is Red Mill Road and this is Mill Court.  Mill Court, Red Mill.  There’s the stop line.  The next photograph is standing on that stop line with the camera here, I know that they make measurements from down here some of these significant things, the camera’s here looking east on Red Mill Road with a car beginning to come over the hill.  This car’s windshield is approximately 350 from where I’m standing and the person in that car can just begin to start to see the intersection.  It’s the rise in the road that’s causing the problem there.  The next one is the same view as the last one but with the lens height here more like what the engineering guidelines say the distance should be measured from and it shows another car again about 350 feet, just a little lower behind the crest.  The next picture is a picture looking west on Red Mill Road from the stop line, 65 inches high and it shows a headlight peaking out from behind the bushes that are obviously bushes can be trimmed back but there’s stone walls, and trees which are appearing in other photographs.  That vehicle is 250 feet away.  This is a similar picture from the previous one but instead of being on the stop line 15 feet back from the road edge as you’re standing right on the road edge to see what’s a little bit more around the corner.  The last one is taken from next to this mailbox that’s on the first picture which is across the road from Red Mill Road so that you can see further around the corner and see that it just continues to curve around as you’re looking and it indicates a tree measured at 400 feet which is still inside the minimum requirement which you cannot see from either one of the other two photographs.  I know that the developers said that they would be willing to change the sight lines but – you’ll also see in that photograph ancient stone walls, large trees and considerable land would have to be moved.  Thank you very much.  

Mr. Charlie Cheron presented himself to the Board and stated I live at 2 Mill Court.  I’ve lived there for 14 years with my wife.  I know they’re going to make some improvements to that intersection of Mill Court and Red Mill.  I’m just wondering if the stone walls and the stone structure that’s in that wall will be affected at all.  That’s the wall that runs up the hill from Mill Court.  Does anybody know? 

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t.

Mr. Charlie Cheron asked will they just be increasing the radius or they’re going to be going laterally up the hill also making some kind of increase in the width of the road?

Mr. John Klarl stated we can have the applicant respond to that. 

Mr. Wells  – we’re going to be clearing some brush in that area. 

Mr. Tim Cronin stated the engineer who prepared the plans.  As far as the intersection improvements go we will be doing some brush clearing and taking a look at what’s allowed from the prior subdivision because there is some site easements on there that they will be able to take advantage of and open up the sight distance from Mill Court out onto Red Mill Road. 

Mr. Ed Vergano asked Tim what are the proposed sight lines?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded off hand I don’t recall what the current sight distance measurements are but that’s certainly something we can get to you.

Mr. Charlie Cheron stated if I’m seeing it right the sight line easement it goes angular from Mill Court to Red Mill and it cuts across the corner.  My concern is that the stone wall has an underground stone structure in it and my concern is that if anything on that stone wall is going to be affected, this structure is actually an underground structure that’s approximately 7 foot by 14 feet deep, it’s shaped like a Quonset hut, it’s completely made out of stone. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked is that like a root cellar that’s there sir?

Mr. Charlie Cheron responded it’s almost like a root cellar but it’s kind of unique in design.
Mr. Robert Foley asked on the uphill side?

Mr. Charlie Cheron responded right.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked are you the corner property?

Mr. Charlie Cheron responded yes.  I have some pictures if you want to see it but I don’t know if that’s important.  My concern is that it may have some historical significance to the neighborhood and the community and if that area is going to be affected I would request that the State Agency come in and look at that and see if that is a historical site.  I don’t know from what I’ve been told whether or not that’s going to be affected.  If it’s only going to be the corner and not reach the stone walls than that conversation is not important.  The other thing would be is that I would like to be able to see any construction that’s going to be done to see how it’s going to affect my property so that if I feel there’s a safety issue or something I could discuss that with somebody and I don’t know who I could talk to about that.  Would it be the developers?  How would I get in touch with you?

Mr. Sheber stated you can talk with us.  I’ll give you a card.
Mr. Charlie Cheron stated the last thing I would like to talk about is the intersection itself.  I know we’re going to make improvements with an increased radius so that the busses can turn more easily, that’s good but I think that living there 14 years and being right close to the traffic I get a sense of what’s going on.  I think as long as the traffic is able to continue to move you’re not going to have the maximum safety effectiveness.  I think the only way to get effective safety coming out of that intersection, especially turning left, is if the traffic is stopped.  I think if you put stop signs there and actually stop the traffic, you’ll have maximum effective safeties for busses and the community at large.  Thank you.

Mr. Frank Priolo presented himself to the Board and stated I live on Mill Court.  Here again.  I feel like a broken record.  I’m going to say the same things I’ve said here several times before.  What we said before on the draft hasn’t been dealt with.  I think when we last met here we talked about the traffic study that was conducted I believe in 2005 presented for 2006, 2007 that talked about peek hours in two different frames of reference, gave different numbers, then analyzed peek times in different areas.  It didn’t correlate.  If you read that report, that report is all over the place.  That report also said 1.6 cars per house.  If they’re still standing by the 1.6 cars per house then let’s put a deed restriction on every house, we’ll give them the benefit, we’ll let every house have 2 cars but no house in that development can have more than 2 cars.  Let’s see if he goes for that, he won’t go for that because he knows not one house in that development in $900,000 plus range is going to have less than 3 cars.  We’ve tossed about cars, we’ve talked about traffic, everyone on this Board agrees Red Mill Road has too much traffic and we don’t know what to do about it, so let’s put more houses that feed out onto that road.  It’s not going to have any impact.  Everyone in it’s report says it’s not going to have an impact, but there’s only one sane person here, that’s the Ambulance Corps who said “oh yes, it’s going to have an impact.  We’re going to be answering more calls there.  We know it.  We answer calls to begin with.  You put more cars down there, there’s going to be more accidents.”  Do you know what it’s like every day having a young child driving a car, a new driver?  You have to worry about them driving.  You have to worry about everybody on the road.  I have to worry about her at the end of my street.  The first thing I tell her is “you can’t make a left hand turn out of my street you’re going to get killed.”  I know that because it almost happened to me the other day.  I drive fast.  I know if I’m going to make a left hand turn out of my road as soon as I see it’s clear I’m on the gas because someone’s going to plow into me and still somebody almost hit me the other day.  You improve the line of sight there you can’t do much.  As Tim said, you can cut down some shrubs.  Okay, that will give you another couple of feet.  You can’t do much more because the power lines are right on the road.  Put more cars, more people are going to plow into the power lines.  It’s going to affect everybody.  That’s the way it is.  We all agree that we need a more of a traffic study.  What did they do in the final draft?  Is there more traffic study?  “Oh, we analyzed the cars on Lexington.”  We’re talking about how many houses on Lexington?  Does that really change anything?  The bulk of the cars are coming onto Red Mill.  We’re not dealing with that.  We’re done.  We did what we had to do and everyone agreed on this Board it needed more work and they didn’t do it.  The busses, they did do some work in that regard.  They talked to the school district.  The school district said “oh, we’ll bring the bus up there.”  You can’t bring a big bus up there.  You can turn in but you can’t come out.  You can’t come out because there’s not enough room to turn and unless you’re going to take away everyone’s property on the corner, and again move a power poll, you’re not going to have a radius enough for the bus to turn.  Go down there and look at that road and look at the scrape marks in the road from trucks trying to turn from Mill Court to Red Mill.  They bottom out and occasionally they even get stuck there and they’re stuck for hours, getting a tow truck because they bottomed out and the wheels can’t move.  Look at the road you’ll see the grooves in the road.  That’s what it’s from.  So we get the little busses coming in.  The school district said “well, we’re the school district, we have to bus kids so we’ll do it.”  Of course they will.  Did they analyze the added cost to the district to get small busses to come up there?  It’s the better idea.  Please don’t stop a school bus down on Red Mill Road.  Please, please, please.  I don’t want that on my conscience, you don’t want that on your conscience.  Don’t stop busses down there for an extended period of time.  It’s bad enough as it is now.  Let the busses come up.  The busses still have to get out.  Even a mini bus making a turn from Mill Court onto Red Mill Road is dangerous.  Something’s going to happen.  You can’t stop the people from speeding up that hill.  It can’t be done.  If somebody’s got an idea please do it.  Have it done.  It won’t be done, it can’t be done.  If you improve the line of sight you’re just going to know it’s going to hit you sooner.  That’s all you’re going to do.  So, the busses are going to have an extra cost.  They don’t analyze that we know that.  The water, finally with the water: I had to laugh.  On the final report I see this map drawn with hand written arrows of how the water flows and my house is the second one down onto Mill Court and it’s got the water from the front of my property going around the back of the house.  Unless somebody dug a channel, the water from the low part is not going to go to the back yard, the high part, and go around to the back of my house.  How do I know that?  Because they dug up my yard.  When my house was built they dug up my yard.  I had a water problem.  The water from the high side close to their property came into my foundation and they had to dig a drywell, so the builder being a builder wanted the cheapest way to do it.  So, he dug up my front yard and said “let’s put a drywell in the front yard, that’s where the water is.”  Guess what he hit?  Ground water.  He dug and he dug and he dug.  You know what he had to do?  He had to sink a septic tank there with a pump and pump the water to the back of the yard.  That was a big cost for him.  He wouldn’t have done it unless he had to.  That’s because there’s water running down the front of my yard.  It’s in everybody’s front yard.  There’s a rock shelf, a ledge, whatever you want to call it of rock right behind my house where he’s claiming all the water goes.  I’m not a geologist but I think the water goes through dirt easier than it goes through solid rock that way the water’s not going to go through solid rock, it’s going to go through the dirt in my front yard.  That’s where the water goes now he wants to put this retention basin, basically a pool of water that’s going to drain in front of my house, at the top of the hill.  Where’s that water going to go?  It’s not going to go around the back of my house unless somebody takes it in a bucket.  It’s going to go down in the front of my house.  It’s going to flood the front of my yard.  It’s going to flood everybody’s front yards as it does now.  Go down to that first house in the corner after a rainstorm, the water’s coming off the yards into the road.  That’s where the water is.  He’s not addressing it.  I talked about bonds and he talks about bonds in the final draft.  He says “well we have to post a bond and then after we’re complete we only have to leave 10% to 20% there for a year.”  That’s not enough to satisfy anything.  These problems don’t come up in a year.  Everyone knows it.  Retention pond, somebody’s got to take care of it to make it keep working and these problems if they’re going to exist may not appear right away, we may have a dry summer, two dry years.  What about the third year?  We’re all left holding the bag.  These are issues that haven’t been addressed.  I think it’s irresponsible and I have to say it, with all due respect to the Board, it’s irresponsible for this Board to approve any subdivision of this size emptying out onto Red Mill Road.  It’s just irresponsible.  Thank you.
Ms. Nancy Young presented herself to the Board and stated and I live at 9 Mill Court so I live on the property adjacent to the parcels in question.  First I’d like to thank Mr. Canfield for actually making it easy for his neighbors to access a lot of the material that we needed to put together our thoughts this evening.  I’m going to read a bit but hopefully I’ll be able to speak to you directly as well.  I’m neither a biologist nor a naturalist, nor a hydrologist, but I’ve lived at 9 Mill Court for 17 years and the first point I’d like to make involves the Evan’s report about the property.  I believe that the consultant has not really adequately answered questions about the biodiversity corridors on the parcels in question and habitat fragmentation, especially those issues that were raised by the Cortlandt Advisory Council in its letter dated November 20th, 2009.  In that letter the CAC states that “the area of the proposed project will result in fragmentation of the habitat causing an alteration in the breeding of interior forest bird populations and will result in a decline of the more environmentally sensitive species.”  Evan’s Associates response to this concern is that the north west area of the parcel, though largely forested and undeveloped, “will provide an alignment of the new houses with a sparse edge of developed area so it’s not truly fragmentation.”  I live in what I’m calling the northeast section of the area of Mill Court.  It’s a relatively developed area when compared to the northwest section.  My windows look directly into the parcel that’s being considered for development.  On a daily basis, weather permitting, and I apologize for walking on your property, I actually do walk through that property.  I walk my dog there.  I trail to visit friends that live at Wild Birch.  I’ve observed on a regular basis mammals and birds moving directly through this area from the northeast to the south and northwest.  I’ve seen flocks of wild turkeys numbering between 12 and 16 birds moving across my lawn and through the woods traveling northeast to northwest.  I’ve used one of the main trails as I mentioned to walk to my friend’s home at Wild Birch.  I’ve seen boxed turtles making burrows.  I’ve seen families of red fox moving through the woods.  The Evan’s report is based on five inspection dates.  I do not believe that five individual inspection dates from this consultant can adequately address the habitat and movement of the various species that live in the parcel in question.  The red fox has a fluid territory.  It keeps a mostly nocturnal schedule and moves its dens around frequently.  I have seen fox on my lawn.  I’ve watched as they’ve ventured the forest habitat and moved again towards the northwest corner directly through the areas designated for lots 2 through 7 and 14 and 15.  I don’t believe that the fox is a type of mammal that will actually present itself to a consultant so that the consultant can map its movement and territory.  He’s just not that kind of animal that is going to participate in the census that way.  I don’t believe that the Evan’s report clarifies the amount of time that they spent surveying the property for wildlife nor does it specify the acreage that they coverage in completing their survey.  I think it’s pretty fair to say that as someone that has lived there for 17 years along with other residents who’ve also told you the same thing that we’ve witnessed a lot more of the wildlife movement in that area than these consultants have.  The Evan’s report also fails to address the concerns of the CAC which noted that just because the habitat in question has not been listed in the Croton to Highlands biodiversity plan or that its size may seem insignificant when compared to other biotic corridors it doesn’t mean its loss won’t have a significant impact on the species in the area.  The map biodiversity plan does mention habitat fragmentation of concern who’s size may remove them from consideration as a biotic planning unit but who’s species and habitat are unusual in that they are not normally found in these much smaller parcels.  The response from Evan’s on this point is to say that there are numerous areas of contact with the main biotic corridor and to restate that the area isn’t part of the original map plan.  To my mind that doesn’t really constitute a fully resolved question.  I also have concerns about the traffic and the formulas used for calculating automobile trips into and out of the main area of development via Mill Court.  I must reiterate to you what it’s like to actually turn out of Mill Court and I urge any one of you to go and drive out of Mill Court during peek traffic hours and pretty much most times.  What you do when you get to the end of Mill Court is you take a really deep breath, you watch for a few seconds, you hold your breath and you speed out of your road, this is whether you’re making a left or a right it doesn’t matter, the sight lines do not exist to properly provide safety for you.  If you’re going to put a bus up there, I would not want to have that on my conscience.  The existing homes on Mill Court are all three or four bedroom residences and by my direct observation and experience each of these homes has at least two automobiles and in a few cases three automobiles which leave their home each morning and return in the evening and I’m talking about peek hours.  This is not unusual for houses of this size in our area.  The homes proposed in the newly developed area will be of similar or larger size and to suggest that 16 houses will produce only 16 outgoing trips during peek morning hours is naïve and ignores the practical experience of living on Mill Court and probably many other roads in our Town.  A final note, if this development is approved which I hope you will give very serious consideration to the issues that are raised this evening, I’d like to trust that the Town Board or its designee will closely monitor this project during all of its phases and most especially during tree removal, reuse and relocation of stone walls, potential blasting, the inclusion of all drywells and detention ponds.  I noted in the FEIS document that the applicant states that “where feasible, he will preserve or relocate stone walls.”  We all know that this would be more costly than simply removing the existing walls in their entirety and the use of “where feasible” can constitute an excuse for not maintaining the walls.  In a letter dated July 9th, 2007 the Westchester County Planning Board said that “the use of small construction equipment should be required to reduce the need to clear cut trees.”  I would like to be reassured by the Board that this would be the case.  We’ve most recently seen a case in Yorktown where construction was done which did not meet the proper oversight that the developers and builders were required to and we know that builders and developers can stray outside the parameters of their project and that once this happens little is done to correct the situation.  I will also tell you that steep slopes are of enormous concern to me.  I already have water that stands on my property to the left side of my house adjacent to the parcel in question.  My property is always wet.  I’m not a hydrologist, I couldn’t read through all the documents and understand exactly what they were saying but it seems to me that no one has actually come from any of these engineering firms and actually spoken to the people that live on Mill Court and as I understand it the people who live on Trolley and down Red Mill.  I would really like to see that happen before somebody puts a formula in writing that tells us that we’re not going to have a problem with flooding.  Thank you.
Ms. Alison Olsen presented herself to the Board and stated I live on Mountain View Road.  I’d like to just reiterate what everybody else has said this evening with regard to the drainage problem.  Almost every house on our road has either pools of water or very wet land, especially in the back of their properties throughout the whole of the year not just in the winter or when it’s raining.  There was a retention pond that was put in when Wild Birch Farms was built.  The condominiums which are at the top of the hill and that particular retention pond has really not alleviated the problems that we have.  I’d like to know how these retention ponds that are going to be put in are going to help when they destroy all the trees and the foliage to put these new houses in.  I understand also from neighbors that there’s an underground spring somewhere along Mountain View Road, and also apparently according to one of the residents on Mill Court Mr. Trotta, I spoke with him today and he said that there’s an underground spring very close to where he lives and at the moment there’s a sink hole on his property which also extends towards the road.  It’s approximately 3 feet by 2 feet wide and in length, I’m not sure how deep it is but it gets bigger.  He has reported this to the Department of Public Works of Cortlandt and so far has not heard anything.  He is very concerned about the drainage problem too.  I’d like to know also why no one, from what I understand, from the Town or from the Engineering Department or even from the engineers representing the property owners have not come out and looked at some of our property on Mountain View, on Mill Court, on Red Mill to see the amount of wet land that we have now before they build, before they take down the trees, before they do the blasting to try and help us to alleviate the problem before it gets worse.  I had also addressed at one of the previous meetings with regards to sewers and Mountain View Road possibly having sewers and I see that’s not even being mentioned, it’s been brought up for Mill Court.  Traffic: with regards to the school busses I’d like to also just reiterate what one of the other residents mentioned and that is that for a school bus, unless it’s going to be turning up Mill Court and somehow or another going up the road and turning around, for it to actually stop and wait for all the children, including all the new residents in these new houses to get on the bus, you’re talking about a long line of people waiting in cars at a busy rush hour time all the way back down Red Mill.  I’ve left my house on occasion, unfortunately when the school busses are just coming along and ended up in a long line.  First of all I have difficulty getting out of my road to get into the line and then having to wait a long time to get up Red Mill Road and get towards the Taconic.  The other thing I’d like to mention is with regards to traffic and that is that some time ago when Wild Birch Farms was being built they talked about opening Mountain View Road and after much review, the Board decided it was not a safe aspect.  I took photographs of the angle at the bottom of Mountain View, the angle of the road looking down the hill and also looking up hill onto Red Mill.  The distance is so short and the angle is so bad that to try and make a left turn out of my road, you have a matter of a couple of seconds in the busy rush hour.  You look up the road, you look back down and you start to come out and the next you know the cars are almost on you and are beeping and is blasting its horn.  The other thing is when you’re coming home in the evening and you’re coming off the Taconic and you come down Red Mill, you try and make a left into our road, I usually slow down way back, signal way back, otherwise I’m afraid someone’s going to rear end my car.  It hasn’t happened yet but it could.  I reiterate also what some of the other residents have said, trying to turn into our roads and trying to get out of our roads you have to put your foot down real fast once you see an open spot and drive in and even then you’re lucky that you don’t get hit.  I’d like to have the Board address some of these issues a little bit more carefully and closely.  Thank you.

Mr. Charlie Cheron stated I just want to get a clarification since there’s nothing actually drawn that I can take a look at.  From what I understand I have a survey map and the corner has a line sight easement.  All the modifications will be contained within that section?  Is that the way it works?
Mr. Tim Cronin responded that’s the easement.

Mr. Charlie Cheron stated whatever’s in that corner, the line sight easement, any modifications will be contained in that area?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded correct.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we will be adjourning this hearing until April and we do expect that there will be other comments including some from our Town Advisory Councils.  

Mr. Peter Lynch presented himself to the Board and stated I’m Mike Sheber’s attorney and as you know this public hearing has been properly scheduled and of course we’ve had a number of people come and make their comments but there isn’t anyone else here to make any comments and we believe that reasonableness dictates that the public hearing be closed.  Frankly, nothing that we’ve heard tonight was anything new that hadn’t already been brought up during the public comment period during the DEIS.  With all due respect we would ask that rather than adjourning the hearing because there doesn’t seem to be any reason to adjourn it.  If for example the number of people that were here tonight were so vast that you wouldn’t be able to hear them all then we would certainly concur that an adjournment would be appropriate but we’ve heard from 10 individuals.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated can I just interrupt you?  I know your point.  We’ve heard this point but it’s getting late, not to cut you off, but judging by the number of people who spoke, whenever this many people speak it’s something of great significance to a neighborhood.  There’s obviously going to be additional people who probably couldn’t make it tonight and who would like to speak.  We want to hear the comments from the CAC.  I don’t think there’s any chance that anybody on this Board is going to vote to close this hearing tonight.  I understand you’re doing what you’ve got to do but let’s be serious and keep going.  

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it’s also important to know that there have been many important issues raised tonight.  The Town did hire engineering consultants, planning consultants, a ground water hydro-geologist, and two traffic consultants.  It’s important I think to have some of them in present at a public hearing.  We’ll try to get this information, these questions to them to get them prepared for the next meeting. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I think that some of the questions that were brought up by the public have to be answered whether it’s from a traffic consultant or hydrologist or whatever.  On the school bus issue, what the gentleman who lives on the corner was bringing up, I forgot his name, that’s just for sight line improvements at Mill Court/Red Mill I believe.  Is that including also a curb cut improvement for bringing a larger school bus up?  I don’t know.  

Mr. Peter Lynch responded we defer to the Board’s discretion obviously.  We just wanted to make the point. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think at this point you have to understand when we have and I have to agree with Mr. Kline, whenever we have a situation where people turn out in these numbers and where there has been a certain level of concern and contention about it we rarely close with one hearing.  You’ve been here before, you see how this works.  We will be adjourning this until next month and await some additional input and information from both consultants as well as the public.  

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we keep the public hearing open and adjourn it to our April 6th meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 10-09    b.
Application of the Peekskill New York Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses for Site Development Plan Approval for a 1,938 sq. ft. addition to the existing 2,117 sq. ft. church building and for an additional 19 parking spaces for property located at 1071 Oregon Road as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Civil Site Plans for Peekskill Kingdom Hall Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses” prepared by CHA, dated December 22, 2009.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there will be a little bit of a presentation.  I don’t know whether anybody is here to comment because this is a public hearing but we’ll allow you to make your little presentation briefly and then we’ll hear from anybody who wants to make a comment based on what you’re going to say.
Mr. Jason Anderson stated Far Anderson Architects.  I’m here with the applicant Scott Lucas.  Just a little history on the property.  This is an existing place of worship from 1967 on this lot and currently it’s 2,110 square feet and that’s main floor plus another 2,000 square feet as a basement which is also used for services. What we’re looking to do is bring those services which are down below, since they’re not accessible, up onto one level and put a 1,938 square foot addition on which keeps the square footage actually at a little less than what’s existing but now all on one level.  In addition, there’s 25 existing parking spaces that are paved and then there are overflow parking which is a gravel area.  Now, what we’re looking to do is define all of those parking spaces and pave them and that will give us 44 spaces when we’re done.  There’s really no increase when it comes to the seating capacity, the occupancy load there is 200 occupants existing but there’s only 173 seats in the new plan and there’s 173 in the existing.  It’s basically all the same uses but we’re just trying to upgrade it to bring it up to handicap standards and other modern standards. 

Mr. John Klarl asked so the parking will be 44?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded 44, that includes 2 accessible spaces.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked total parking?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded total yes.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing as I’ve said and if there’s anybody here who would like to make comments or address this application, this is the time to do it.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairperson I move that we close the public hearing and that we prepare a Resolution for the April meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we will have the approving Resolution for next month.

OLD BUSINESS 

PB 9-09      a.
Application of Brookfield Resource Management Inc., for the property of 2114 APR, LLC, for Site Development Plan Approval and a Steep Slope Permit for a recycling facility for scrap metal from end-of-life vehicles, as well as tires, all fluids, batteries, mercury switches, and other recyclables  that are part of the vehicle and for recycling of other end of life durable goods that are primarily constructed of metal at a facility located at 2105 & 2109 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Brookfield Resource Management” prepared by Nosek Engineering dated December 24, 2009 (see prior PB 35-06)

Mr. David Steinmetz stated representing Brookfield.  My client has prepared a short PowerPoint presentation to walk you through some of the questions that we got from the Board at the last meeting to better understand and familiarize yourself with the site, with the operation that’s going on, with the recycling component.  Mr. Malone thought it would be best to try to walk you through a step-by-step explanation.  We would be delighted if the Board would schedule a site inspection at the earliest possible date as you’ve heard me ask.  We think that when you see and better understand what is happening there, what is proposed to occur you will be most pleased.  It is a vast improvement over what had been there for many years and as we have explained to you and to staff, it still is the activity that is definitionally a ‘junkyard’ under your Code though we do like to view it more as a recycling facility.  Definitionally it does meet the criteria set forth in your Code.  I’m going to let Tom Malone walk you through his state-of-the art facility and we’re happy to answer any questions and then talk about a site walk.
Mr. Tom Malone stated I’ll give you a brief overview of the company, our proposed site improvements and the current operations on the site.  Consider it a preamble to your site visit.  The company: we’re Westchester based, we have our primary processing facility in Elmsford, New York and we have satellite operations in Montrose and the Bronx.  I’ve been asked if we are moving any operations from Elmsford to Montrose and we’re not.  Montrose is net new and it’s a satellite operation.  We’ll continue to operate as we have been in Elmsford.  We’ve been there for over 40 years.  We employ over 85 full time employees there.  We’re not moving employees to Montrose.  All the employees in Montrose are new employees.  We focus on innovative and industry leading business practices, safe and healthy workplace for our employees and a focus on community service.  Relative to our proposed improvements on the site: what we’re really talking about is modernizing the site.  To the best of my knowledge the site has not been improved.  There’s been no changes to the site in probably 25 or 30 years.  What we’re looking to do is modernize for safe, clean and efficient recycling of discarded materials such as junk vehicles, obsolete machinery and scrap metals.  One of the things we’re going to focus on is new landscaping and perimeter fencing to enhance the frontage and mitigate any visual impacts.  Also, what we’d like to do is modify the site grading to improve the operational efficiency and provide safer operations on the site.  Also, augment the paved surfaces to improve the site maintenance and control any potential dust on the site.  Storm water systems will be introduced as well and that’s for the control of runoff and monitor the site condition.  What we accept at the site and everything we accept at the site we purchase is primarily junk vehicles, obsolete machinery and scrap metal such as: light iron, aluminum, brass, and copper.  What we do not accept is things like municipal solid waste, combustible or flammable materials, free-flowing liquids, broken batteries, sealed or pressurized containers, asbestos, PCBs, radio-active material, hazardous material, anything marked ‘hazardous material’, firearms and ammunitions.  This is important because remember, we purchase everything that comes into that site.  If we accept anything on this list it’s going to cost us quite a bit of money to get it off the site.  
Mr. Steven Kessler asked so all those things could be part of a Resolution?

Mr. Tom Malone responded sure, no problem.  As far as our commitment to the site and the community we’ve already spent over a quarter of a million dollars on a general clean-up of the site.  In order to get operational on the site it needed quite a bit of clean up.  We’re focusing on 8 to 10 full time jobs with benefits such as health care and 401K, will generate new business for the local stores and contractors, we’d like to contribute to any local needs and focus on commitment to improving the community we operate in.  I’ll talk a little bit about recycling at a high level relative to the Montrose operations.  I’ll use a passenger vehicle that’s reached the end of its useful life as an example.  The vehicle arrives at the site, a tow company or a body shop will bring it to us.  The first thing we do is inspect the vehicle to make sure it doesn’t have anything that we don’t accept on the site.  An example of that is we’ll open the trunk and if there’s a propane cylinder in the trunk, we’ll remove it and require the company that brought the vehicle to us to remove it from the site.  We will then drain all the fluids, dismantle the vehicle, the salvaged materials will be processed, packaged and stored prior to transport off the site.  Everything that comes in the site, leaves the site typically within two to three days.  The salvaged materials transported to foundries and refineries for further processing.  The material is manufactured into products such as sheet metal, which is in turn made into new vehicle components in this example and those new vehicles are constructed using these recycled materials.  That’s recycling at a high level relative to Montrose operations.  The content of your average passenger vehicle it’s predominantly steel.  It ranges between 72% and 75%.  There’s about 12% glass, 7% other material or things like seat cushions, Styrofoam, that type of material that typically doesn’t get recycled unfortunately but it does move off site typically to a landfill.  The plastic we can recycle, the aluminum we can recycle and the copper we can recycle.  At a little more detail, we inspect the vehicles, we then remove non-ferrous components for recycling, we then drain and recycle all the fluids, we remove reusable parts, so any parts that can be reused such as engines and transmissions.  We’ll remove them, inventory them and then move them off site.  We’ll compact the vehicle for transport.  The vehicle will then be shipped off-site and the metals will be recycled for reuse.  First step is the material inspection.  It’s very important.  We inspect everything that comes on the site before it is unloaded.  If there’s any potential problem with the load we don’t unload it on the site we turn the load around.  The next step is to remove and recycle the non-ferrous components, things like batteries, tires, wheels, catalytic converters, wiring, that type of material is removed, processed, packaged, stored and then shipped off site for further recycling.  Everything that comes onto the site moves off the site typically within two to three days.  The next step is to drain and recycle all the fluids.  All the fluids in the vehicle are drained.  All the fluids have recyclable value so these fluids we do sale so it’s important for us to capture them, package them properly and then ship them off-site to waste fluid refiners and they convert the material into reusable products.  An example of that would be waste oil is typically sold and then used in waste oil burners.  We then remove and inventory components that have reuse value.  Things like engines and transmissions.  These parts are salvaged and then transported to parts consumers and remanufacturing facilities the majority of which is shipped to remanufacturing facilities and they will then sell those parts as usable parts.  The vehicles are then compacted and stored.  We need to compact the vehicles for cost-effective transport.  Typically, once a load is ready to go it moves.  We don’t hold onto the material.  If there’s enough material to move to justify one load it moves off the site.  Prior to the transport though the material is stored on site.  The material is then shipped off-site, it’s sent to regional facilities for further processing.  The materials are then mechanically separated at these regional facilities.  This doesn’t happen in Montrose, it’s outside of Montrose.  Lastly, the metals and the plastics are recycled for reuse.  All the separated metals and plastics are sold to companies that process them into products such as sheet metal and plastic pellets and these are sold to manufacturers of new products.  That’s the overview of the operations.  Any questions?  We can get into a lot more detail when we do the site visit.  This was a brief introduction for the site visit.  
Ms. Susan Todd asked how much do you actually have in operation according to what you just told us on the site now?

Mr. Tom Malone responded right now we have three employees.  We’re receiving material every day.  We’re processing it just as we went through.  As far as inventory on the site, is that the question?

Ms. Susan Todd stated no I just wondered whether you were dealing with the fluids, are you doing the compacting?

Mr. Tom Malone responded everything we went over we’re doing right now on the site.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the reason we’re here just to put it into perspective because the operation, Susan, as Tom said it’s going on, we’re not here to ask for permission to do that because that’s happening now, we’re here because as he said he wants to modernize.  If you look at the site plan that you got from us the site plan shows a processing pad that we want to add to the site, a scale house next to some scales.  Those are the kinds of improvements that we want to put into the site and, as Tom referred to, some grading into some areas to allow for better use of the site.  Those are the site plan elements that we need your Board for.  That and I should add to that the signage and the fence modifications.  Chris knows when Tom bought the property and we came to the Town initially it was the first thing that he wanted to do was to clean up the front with some landscaping, a new fence, and signage.  When we talked about that in conjunction with everything else we felt that needed to be presented to your Board.  I think that may be the third time I’m mentioning it, at any time if you can carve that out he’s ready to do what I would call the ‘front door’ improvements and you’ll see that during your site inspection.  We know exactly what needs to be done to clean that up and make it more attractive for the community and more functional for Tom.  We’re anxious to do the fence, the signage, the landscaping and move forward.  In essence, it really is a fairly finite site plan modification and modernization.  
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked when you come in does that loop road wind to the left as the materials come in?  Do they come into the left or to the right?  There’s something a little awkward about the way it’s presented.  It’s like they come in and you’ve got your little house there at the beginning and then there’s this further down the way there’s this sort of pad or something.  I’m looking at it and if I were a large truck in, first of all it looks real tight there and then you’ve got this loop.  Does it go to the left when they come in and go all the way around to that processing and then come back out?  Is that how it works?

Mr. Tom Malone responded yes it comes in to the left.  It could appear tight on the plan but when you see the site there’s quite a bit of space there.  The vehicles come in – everything that comes into the facility we weigh.  Everything we purchase is purchased by weight.  Everything that comes in, comes in, it goes to the left as you’ve indicated, the vehicles pull onto a scale, we get a weight.  Typically what we do in Elmsford and what we’ll eventually do in Montrose is when a vehicle pulls and we take the weight, we actually take pictures of the vehicle for our records and then it goes to the next step of the process such as the inspection of the material.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked and you can do all of the processing in that one big pad over there?  Everything gets done right there?

Mr. Tom Malone responded yes.  The draining of the vehicles takes place inside the building.  We bring the vehicles inside.  We put them on a specialized drainage rack that allows us to efficiently remove all of the fluids from the vehicles because remember all of the fluids have recycling value and we paid for that to come in and it’s important that we maximize the return on everything that’s coming in. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked now when you’ve finished processing this whatever materials, you sell it?  Is that what it is?

Mr. Tom Malone responded yes. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do you sell it generally to small, independent kind of businesses or to large, governmental kinds of things or is it a mix?

Mr. Tom Malone responded they’re larger businesses.  Think of mills and refineries.  They’re bigger businesses because the quantities are pretty large. 

Mr. John Klarl stated Mr. Malone I don’t generally go to site inspections but I think it was late July, I went out to the site with Mr. Vergano and at Mr. Vergano’s request and I think we had someone from Code Enforcement, and you were doing substantial clean up at that time of tires.  How many tires do you think you’ve removed since February of ’09?

Mr. Tom Malone responded over 23,000 that were left on the site.
Mr. John Klarl asked what happened with those 23,000 tires.

Mr. Tom Malone responded they were all recycled. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated if nothing else that’s been a good accomplishment to reduce the hazard of 23,000 tires sitting in that area. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated also, I trust that there were soil tests throughout the site?  What did that show?

Mr. Jim Ullrich stated Alpine Environmental Consultants.  Some tests were done when the property was still under Mr. Kauffman’s ownership and I’ve reviewed them but we didn’t conduct them so we weren’t involved in the sampling so I can’t really comment on that.  But, when we were having DEC out to discuss the tire clean-up, the DEC solid waste staff, that was their first order of business, let’s eliminate these things that contravene current regulations.  We went over a protocol about the future soil testing because what they wanted to see happen first was the removal of the tires and also the removal of any recyclables from soils that were on site.  The materials that were illegally land filled, the tires and various other automotive components, truck and car frames, that sort of thing, they want to see that out of the soil that was removed also.  The material’s been stockpiled after the frost is out of it, that’s going to be screened, run over a magnet, steel taken out, other visible recyclables hand picked out and then the soil stockpiled again and then we’re going to propose a sampling protocol with DEC.  They wanted us to propose a protocol based on shape and size of the stockpile, the final volume, once all the recyclables are out and have us submit the sampling and testing protocol to them for approval before that’s done.  We expect that to happen this spring. 

Mr. Ed Vergano asked it’s safe to say at this point that there’s no recognized contaminants at the site that have been spill numbers assigned?

Mr. Jim Ullrich responded no.  There’s no spill number.  The DEC staff basically said “we don’t see anything here.  No drums were uncovered.  We don’t see anything here untoward for a junkyard.  It’s what we’d anticipate.”  
Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think we discussed at the work session using March 28th as the site inspection date so I would move that we schedule a site inspection for this application for March 28th and then bring this back at the April meeting under ‘old business’, seconded. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that is Palm Sunday.  We’re going to make this the first one and then we’re going to try and move it as fast as possible. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated because we do have several others that we have to do.

Mr. John Klarl asked so about what time Chris?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded we’ll be there at 9:00 a.m. 

Mr. Tom Malone stated can I make one more point about the initial cleanup?  When we purchased the property, prior to purchasing it we did quite a bit of testing.  We had a good understanding of what was there.  We voluntarily brought the DEC in shortly after purchasing the property and presented them our plan and explained to them the situation with the tires, went over our plan and it wasn’t a situation where the DEC came in.  We voluntarily brought them in. 
Mr. Ivan Kline asked there’s no problem with Palm Sunday 9:00 a.m.? 

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we will see you on the 28th.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked one procedural question, Brad you may recall, you designated your intent to declare yourselves lead agency.  I don’t know whether – I think the 30 days has run. 

Mr. John Klarl stated we declared that at the February 2nd meeting. 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked we took care of that?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.

Mr. John Klarl continued we also extended your Special Permit.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated 30 days has not run I don’t think.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated okay because today is March 2nd.  It was on my tickler list to close out the SEQRA lead agency status. 

Mr. John Klarl stated we did extend your Special Permit to March of 2011 though.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I did have a brief conversation with DEC who was one of the interested agencies.  I forgot the woman’s name but she said she might be submitting, not claiming lead agency status but is maybe going to be submitting some comments for the Board.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated we’ll see you on the 28th.  I hope the presentation was helpful.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes it was.
PB 11-09    b.
Application of Gyrodyne Company of America for a Special Permit, Amended Site Development Plan approval and a Wetland Permit for a new paved turnaround area with two (2) handicapped parking spaces and an additional 52 parking spaces for a total of 54 parking spaces at the Cortlandt Medical Center located at 1985 Crompond Road as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan Application” prepared by Calvin Black, P.E. latest revision dated January 22, 2010 (see prior PB 13-02).

Mr. Frederic Wells stated from Tim Miller Associates. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked did you have anything that you needed to say to us at this point? 

Mr. Frederic Wells responded nothing specific but I think we would discuss the site walk that we had on Sunday and go through some of those items if you’d like or you can take the lead.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we were there on Sunday and I think that generally speaking the Board would go along with your plan except for some of the specific parking that we talked about towards the front on that right hand side coming up.  We felt that it was really – a number of the spaces were far too close to the entrance and we talked about the fact that…

Mr. Frederic Wells stated there was discussion about how close they were and I mislead you a little bit on the location but I think we did discuss what was there.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and correct that but even with the correction, certainly I felt and I know there were a couple of other people who felt that still more space is needed to be dealt with or removed so there would be a little more space where people were turning quickly into that entranceway so that they wouldn’t hit anybody who happens to be backing out.  I think we need to work on a revised drawing for that section. 

Mr. Frederic Wells stated I think we can consider that.  I think we had looked at the plan and figured around 100 feet should be adequate and we can take out two or three spaces in order to accommodate that if the Board feels that that’s an appropriate number.  Right now there’s about 70 feet shown before the first parking space from the road. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked and you would take out how many more spaces to get to what?

Mr. Frederic Wells responded two to three to get to 100 feet. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked 100 feet from Route 202?

Mr. Frederic Wells responded right from 202.

Mr. Robert Foley asked or from the entrance exit of the other doctor’s?

Mr. Frederic Wells responded from 202.

Mr. Robert Foley stated because we said on Sunday the other doctor’s office.  It used to be Doctor Hittman now it’s several doctors.  It’s very busy and active in-and-out.
Mr. Frederic Wells stated right now our proposal has the parking spaces in from that driveway.  We’ll pull them further back from that intersection, the driveway intersection.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the type of parking diagonal parking…

Mr. Frederic Wells responded it was brought up at the site walk about having diagonal.  We would be opposed to that because of people – even though there’s diagonal they would still attempt to back out to go directly towards the exit and it would be more of a safety hazard than having perpendicular parking.  But, we can certainly look at that to see if that…

Mr. Robert Foley asked you’re saying that perpendicular would be safer than diagonal?

Mr. Frederic Wells responded safer than trying to back out of a diagonal space that is intended to be on a one-way street going the other way.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I still don’t know about the 100 foot clearance.  It still seems that it might be a little bit tight.  Ed, what do you think about 100 feet?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded I’m a little confused about something.  I think the original proposal is 187 total spaces?

Mr. Frederic Wells responded for the number of spaces?  I believe that’s correct, yes.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’m sorry, you said you were going to change that?

Mr. Frederic Wells responded it would be reduced slightly unless we can find a couple of spaces put in the site.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you would be reducing the first couple…

Mr. Frederic Wells responded right, the first couple from Route 202 would be removed.  

Mr. Ed Vergano asked and that would be 100 feet?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I still think that’s a little bit much.  When people are coming quickly in I don’t know, there’s something that says that a 100 feet, at least I feel this way I guess I would have to go over there and measure it.  I just don’t know that that’s enough space. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked where would it bring it?  To the first sign as you’re coming in on the right?

Mr. Frederic Wells responded to the first sign, possibly a little bit beyond that.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked you mean beyond that going towards 202?

Mr. Frederic Wells responded into the site. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked so in other words where we see the first sign, after the first lamp post?  The first parking spot would be after that first sign, going up the hill on the right?

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’m inclined to agree with the Chairperson.  

Mr. Frederic Wells responded if we take out three spaces it would take it to where the first sign exists right now.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated if you took out another 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and brought it to that cross-hatched area, second sign, I think I would be more comfortable with that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you have permission from zoning to do 190…

Mr. Frederic Wells stated we’ve got approval to do up to 190.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and you would be taking out how many spaces based on that, that you’re looking at?

Mr. Frederic Wells responded 9.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so you’d loose let’s say 10, now you’re down to 180 and I think at peek you only need 170.  You’re still 10 spaces…

Mr. Frederic Wells stated the 190 is what the max that we can put on the site based on the zoning approval.  We’re not proposing that right now.  Right now the plan is 187.

Mr. Black if you want us to put 9 less on that’s fine with us because we were trying to alleviate an issue but we believe that it’s a safety issue, the applicant is fine with putting less spaces on the site.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think I would go for fewer spaces and moving the cars further in so that the ones coming in.
Mr. Black stated now it’s going to be 150 feet.  I think it’s really generous.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s generous but I think if you are there during the day and you see how people come back and forth quickly, every little margin that you have for protection is worth it rather than getting your car or your body all banged up because somebody didn’t see you pulling out and they hit you then that can be a constant source of …

Mr. John Klarl stated Madame Chairperson just to refresh the recollections, I think they had an application before the Zoning Board of Appeals in January, they wanted to go from 136 spaces to 190.  The Zoning Board of Appeals granted a Variance because the requirement was 266, the Zoning Board of Appeals granted a Variance down to 190 so to give them a Variance of 76 parking spaces.  The applicant was looking, as I recall at the January meeting, for 170 plus.  Mr. Miller did the traffic study and said that 170 that handled peek use.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated at this point they would still have more than they would need to handle the peek so I think we can afford to be more generous in this case.  We don’t have to have all those extra spaces if we can.

Mr. Black does this mean we have to go back to zoning if we reduce the number?

Mr. John Klarl responded no.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked is it possible to get some additional spaces by the turnaround by building E, maybe some parallel?

Mr. Frederic Wells responded we’ll take a look at it to see if we can get a couple of spaces.  

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I was not able to be at the site visit on Sunday and I was wondering for those who were at the site visit if the drainage issues – any drainage concerns were addressed.

Mr. Frederic Wells responded Calvin Black from KGD was there.  He had the graphic which is similar to the two graphics that were submitted to the Board as part of the storm water report but he verbally explained what the proposal is and there weren’t any specific questions to that regard. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we need to evaluate…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and I need to get the members who weren’t at the site inspection, that drawing that was passed out at the site inspection, so you’ll get that.
Mr. Frederic Wells stated that drawing is taken out of the storm water report that was submitted to the Board, the two drawings.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we’ll need to evaluate the drainage.  I believe that they’re proposing just a large pond largely for infiltration? 

Mr. Frederic Wells responded there’s an existing depression that appears to take the water now and we expect that this will be adequate to serve the project. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we need to look at that. 

Mr. John Bernard asked the predominant tree species on the site seems to be Norway Maples?

Mr. Frederic Wells responded the arborist’s report that recently came in with a big predominance of Norway Maples.

Mr. John Bernard stated I’m not much of a plant guy but I think aren’t Norway Maples an invasive species?  Isn’t that why there’s so many of them?

Mr. Frederic Wells responded they’re on the invasive species list.

Mr. John Bernard asked is there any talk about getting rid of some of those Norway Maples?

Mr. Frederic Wells responded they will be taking some of them out.

Mr. John Bernard asked I know you will but is there any….

Mr. Frederic Wells responded also if there are hazardous conditions we’ll rectify those either by removal or trimming the trees.

Mr. John Bernard stated what I was wondering is if there’s any potential on this site to get rid of a bunch of those Norway Maples and be planting some other native species that would be actually a better tree species for the area.

Mr. Frederic Wells responded a lot of the trees I think are around the fringes, he located on his plan including the wetland buffer, etc and we’re not planning to disturb those but certainly any trees that are in an area or close to an area that’s being disturbed we can consider maybe it’s better to take it out and plant something more appropriate and we’ll certainly go by the list that was provided by the arborist.  He actually only identified about 9% of the site as having trees called good trees.

Mr. John Bernard stated I would certainly agree with that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Fred, we talked about this just remind me, the arborist provided you simply the numbers of the trees?

Mr. Frederic Wells responded the report that came through you was a single letter report and the table that he put together which numbered all the trees and identified their health and situation.  We’re having those trees surveyed because he tagged all the trees.  So, we’ll have a survey of each tree and we’ll incorporate that into the landscape plan to create a tree removal preservation plan to submit to the Board. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I was impressed with the care of tree’s report and particularly the tree protection plan and preservation plan. 

Mr. Frederic Wells stated well, that’s part of your Code we’ll submit that once we get the survey information.

Mr. Robert Foley stated also I brought it up at the last meeting and at the site visit, again thinking of the future, the house that is there adjacent to where you want part of the parking, does the corporation own that?  And, do they have future plans for that property?  Because, that would have solved some of your parking problems.

Mr. Frederick Wells responded an associated company owns that parcel.  Right now there’s no plan for expanding or using that parcel.  It’s obviously being considered as part of a future plan but right now there’s no plan to do anything.

Mr. Robert Foley asked with this new parking you are built out with everything and that parcel there is very valuable if they utilize it or use it for more parking if need be.  Another building there, unless there’s adequate parking, may create another problem.
Mr. John Bernard stated back to the tree species again, if you would speak to your arborist and see if there’s any…

Mr. Frederic Wells stated your arborist.

Mr. John Bernard continued well, our arborist but you’ll be speaking to him and see if there’s any potential for instead of protecting all those Norway Maples getting rid of some of them and planting better species for that area. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated since Fred is correct, he’s our arborist.  He’s probably not even supposed to talk to Fred.  It’s similar to our wetland consultant, so I’ll talk to our arborist and raise those issues with him and report back to you. 

Mr. John Bernard stated well, report back to the Board.  Sure.  

Ms. Susan Todd stated I’d like to make a motion that we schedule a public hearing on this application for April 6th, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 16-07    c.
Application of Linda Jean Sampson for Preliminary Plat Approval and Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 2 lot minor subdivision of a 2.99 acre property located on the west side of Gallows Hill Road at the intersection with Pump House Road as shown on a one page drawing entitled ”Survey, Site Plan & Subdivision of Hudson Valley Realty” prepared by Matthew Noviello, P.E., L.S. latest revision dated March 13, 2008 and on a drawing entitled “Sight Distance Prepared for Hudson Valley Realty” prepared by Matthew Noviello, P.E., L.S. received by the Planning Division on March 24, 2008.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I move that we schedule a site inspection for this application on March the 28th, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 1-10      d.
Application of Curry Properties, LLC for Site Development Plan Approval for the modification and expansion of the existing Curry Hyundai/Subaru to Curry Toyota and for the demolition of the existing HSBC Bank Building and the former Midas Muffler Shop and the construction of an approximately 26,500 sq. ft. Curry Subaru/Hyundai dealership on a 5.305 acre parcel of property located at 3025 East Main Street (Route 6) as shown on a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Curry Properties” prepared by Joel Greenberg, R.A. latest revision dated February 17, 2010.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated as you know, we are scheduling a site inspection for the property and we intend to do it along with the others on March 28th, are you good with that?
Mr. Joel Greenberg responded fine.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we schedule the site visit for March 28th, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 9-06      e.
Application of W. Lance Wickel for Final Plat approval for a 3 lot major subdivision of a 4.59 acre parcel for a proposed building lot for property located on the east side of Lafayette Avenue approximately 250 feet south of Greenlawn Road as shown on a plat entitled “Subdivision Plat prepared for W. Lance Wickel” prepared by James Seaboldt, PLS latest revision dated December 1, 2009 and on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Integrated Plot Plan for W. Lance Wickel” prepared by Tim Cronin, III, P.E. latest revision dated November 30, 2009.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a Resolution John do you want to make a motion?
Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we have staff prepare an approving Resolution for our April meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 24-06    f.
Application and Draft Environmental Impact Statement dated February 5th, 2010 of Ace Sport Realty Holding Corp., c/o Phillip Hersh, for Site Development Plan Approval and for Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for two retail/office buildings totaling 31,000 sq. ft. located on a 2.08 acre parcel on the north side of Route 6 at the intersection with the Bear Mountain Parkway and Jacobs Hill Road as shown on a 7 page set of drawings entitled “Retail/Office Buildings Main Street Plaza” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated May 19, 2008.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairperson I move that we declare the DEIS complete and that we set a public hearing for May 4th, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 6-04      g.
Application of Brian Khan for Final Plat approval for a 2 lot minor subdivision of 4.15 acres located on the west side of Lexington Avenue, approximately 400 feet north of John Street as shown on a Final Plat entitled “Final Subdivision of Property prepared for Brian Khan and Roberta Khan” prepared by Daniel Merritts, PLS latest revision dated November 30, 2009 and a 4 page set of drawings entitled “2 Lot Subdivision for Brian Khan” prepared by Joel Greenberg, R.A. latest revision dated January 18, 2010.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I move that we have staff prepare an approving Resolution for the April meeting, seconded.
Ms. Susan Todd stated on the question I’d just like staff to check the final plan that’s been submitted for screening for trees because I think I recall that we had asked for evergreens to be along the driveway and John at the work session was also talking about evergreens towards the back of the property to screen a wetland area.

Mr. John Bernard stated I don’t know that that pertains to this application.  I was thinking of another application, I apologize.

Ms. Susan Todd stated okay.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there may be wetlands way back.
Mr. [136:18] stated way beyond our disturbance area.  It’s nothing along the area that we’re extending the driveway.
With all in favor saying "aye." 
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Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’d like to get a motion so that we can move our two ‘new business’ spots in the agenda before going over to ‘correspondence’.

So moved, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
NEW BUSINESS 

PB 3-10      a.
Application of Thomas N. Morrow and Thomas Hagen & Melissa Klay for a Lot Line Adjustment between two properties located at 208 Colabaugh Pond Road and 212 Colabaugh Pond Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Lot Line Adjustment Plat prepared for Thomas N. Morrow and Thomas Hagen & Melissa Klay” by Stephen R. Miller, P.L.S. dated February 18, 2010.
Ms. Susan Todd stated I’d like to make a motion that we have a Resolution to approve this application at our next meeting on April 6th, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 4-10      b.
Application of KAT Partners, Inc. for Site Development Plan Approval for the conversion of 400 square feet of existing residential space to office space and for the parking of commercial passenger vehicles on the site for property located at 56 Roa Hook Road (Route 9) as shown on a 2 page set of drawing entitled “Site Development Plan for KAT Partners, Inc.” prepared by Cronin Engineering dated February 19, 2010.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
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CORRESPONDENCE

PB 25-04    a.
Letter dated November 24th, 2009 from Daniel Ciarcia requesting the first one-year time extension after the Chairman’s signature on the Site Plan to complete the required improvements for the Tim Cook property located on the east side of Albany Post Road, Rte 9A.

Mr. William Zutt stated I hope you all received a copy of a letter from me dated February 5th and I think it pretty much sums up the situation.  As you can see it’s our view that an extension actually was not required but if you feel differently we’re requesting that you grant one.  This is not a case where a Building Permit was needed because the work that was approved was straightforward site work.  Had a Building Permit been required Mr. Cook could have applied for it anytime within the 12 months after the site plan was signed and he would currently be acting well within the period of any issued Building Permit.  This is just one of those cases you’ve probably not see before and I frankly don’t know why Mr. Ciarcia requested the extension.  I don’t think he had to but he did.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there is an approving Resolution…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 18-10 granting the one-year time extension, seconded.

Mrs. Knapp asked may I speak?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded this is not a public hearing.

Mr. William Zutt stated I believe this young lady was heard at great length Madame Chair at the last meeting.  This is not a public hearing.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it isn’t.  

With all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 14-98    b.
Letter dated February 5, 2010 from Patrick Bell, P.E. requesting the 12th six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval for the Washington Trails subdivision located on Washington Street.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we approve Resolution 19-10, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 9-06      c.
Letter dated February 17, 2010 from Patrick Bell requesting the 4th six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval of the Wickel Subdivision located on the east side of Lafayette Avenue.

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we approve Resolution 20-10, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 40-06    d.
Letter dated February 24, 2010 from Ernest Knippenberg requesting Planning Board approval of an expanded area of disturbance and additional Steep Slope disturbance for the construction of the bus parking lot at the Hudson Valley Bus Garage located on Dogwood Road.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just a brief background.  The applicant is looking to extend the limit of disturbance.  As you recall about a year or so ago the applicant came in with a revised site plan which pushed back the proposed limit of disturbance about 25 feet give or take from the original approval because he didn’t encounter the ledge that they expected to encounter.  They redesigned the project that the direction of the Planning Board.  We worked out the engineering details with our office.  They went out there to construct the wall at the new proposed location and once again did not find the ledge that prompted the applicant to continue the disturbance further up the hill.  When it came to my attention that they were beyond the limit of disturbance as approved by the second plan we issued a Stop Work Order recently and the applicant is here to explain how he wants to finish the project out.

Mr. Mark Ross stated I’m actually a friend of Ernest.  I’m here to try and help him out.  

Mr. Ed Vergano asked you’re involvement with the project again?

Mr. Mark Ross responded I’m actually a friend of Ernest but I’m helping him out.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked are you an engineer?

Mr. Mark Ross responded from Canada, yes.  I have some Associate degrees as well that were transferred down here.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked so you’re helping him out in a technical capacity?

Mr. Mark Ross responded I hold a Building Science Degree.  I’m actually here for a different project and I’m trying to help him out with this one and get him done.  I’m here to answer the question because I’m the person that’s on the site.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked are you a professional engineer recognized by the State of New York?

Mr. Mark Ross responded no I am not.  The engineer that we do have here that is recognized by the State of New York is Mr. Kevin Patton.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated the gentleman that’s with you is?

Mr. Kevin Patton stated presented himself to the Board and stated I’m a geotechnical engineer.  I’m employed by Advanced Testing and Company in Orange County.  I was brought in as a geotechnical consultant to resolve the issues that arose due to the different site conditions.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked are you a licensed engineer?

Mr. Kevin Patton responded yes I am.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked when we’re you brought in?

Mr. Kevin Patton responded approximately a month and a half ago.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated what engineer signed the site plan?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that was a Matthew Noviello who prepared the original design plans for the wall. 

Mr. Mark Ross responded that is correct. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is Mr. Knippenberg here?

Mr. Mark Ross responded no Mr. Knippenberg is not here.  Apparently there’s been a request for a meeting on Thursday night at 5:30 to review with a couple of Board members which I think because of the unique characteristics of what is happening here that it’s probably best if somebody did come out and have the opportunity to have a look through it.  I don’t want to leave the hill opened too long because we subsequently had some other issues but I think just visually to see it would help for people to understand exactly what’s going on.  That’s probably the best way to put it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I was just wondering why he’s not – this is an important issue and he’s not here for his own application.  I was just curious if there was a reason for that.

Mr. John Bernard stated personally I’m more concerned with where the original engineer is.  Is he still involved with the project?

Mr. Mark Ross stated he’s still involved with the project and actually he’s very much aware of Mr. Patton being involved.  Between the three of us we are working on it.  Mr. Noviello is still more the retaining wall.  He’s not as much a geotechnical engineer as Mr. Kevin Patton specializes in. 
Mr. John Bernard stated and with the original engineering that was done…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I have the original plans here and I see Joel Greenberg as the guy that signed.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated but Joel Greenberg didn’t design the wall though.  He designed the site plan.  

Mr. John Klarl stated the parking layout.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think what we need before we go any further is some clear sense of what went on here and I don’t think I’m getting it.  It was designed by one person, a wall was built by another person, they were supposed to hit a ledge and they didn’t get a ledge, and they have this problem and then they did some redesign.

Mr. John Bernard asked we’re getting there. So the original engineer, what’s his name?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded the original engineer was Joel Greenberg.  He designed the site plan. 

Mr. John Bernard stated no he’s the architect. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated no, no he was the engineer.  He prepared the site plan.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but he’s an architect not an engineer.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated yes, but that’s okay he can prepare a site plan.  He showed a ledge wall at the end of the parking area.  They did not run into a ledge.  They came back with a revised plan.

Mr. John Bernard asked slow down.  He showed the ledge on the original drawing based on what?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded presumably based on a field test.  Is that correct Mark?

Mr. Kevin Patton responded there were some preliminary soil borings performed that indicated that rock was present.

Mr. John Bernard stated soil borings done with a shovel?  Soil borings drilled down?

Mr. Kevin Patton responded drilled.

Mr. John Bernard asked so that they could identify the actual rock that they ran into.

Mr. Kevin Patton responded they did but it proved to be inaccurate once excavation began.

Mr. John Bernard asked how is that so?

Mr. Kevin Patton responded there was no rock there.

Mr. John Bernard asked so you found rock but then there was no rock there?

Mr. Kevin Patton responded based on what Mr. Ross told me it appears they drilled into a large boulder.
Mr. John Bernard stated a boulder would have been a different rock than that ledge is comprised of.

Mr. Mark Ross stated that’s understandable sir, I understand where you’re coming from…

Mr. John Bernard stated exactly.  You had an erratic boulder that you sampled.

Mr. Mark Ross stated I was not here for the sampling.  All I can tell you is that what I’ve heard is that it was an horizontal boring machine that they had to assemble on the hill to do the drilling with.  Not knowing the technical aspects of it or anything like that where rock was supposed to be is not.

Mr. John Bernard asked and this was the first time around?  Then someone came back sampled again to find the ledge and you came…isn’t that correct?  Came back with a modified plan with the wrong information the second time.  Isn’t that correct?  And, now we’re here a third time.  Who knows where the rock is?

Mr. Mark Ross responded we’re working on it is all I can tell you.

Mr. John Bernard asked and what kind of rock are you finding?  What is that ledge comprised of?

Mr. Kevin Patton responded it’s the Annsville filate.  It’s kind of a shaly looking rock.  It’s very similar to what’s exposed…

Mr. John Bernard asked kind of like the rock hut that’s behind you there.

Mr. Kevin Patton responded it’s exactly like that. 

Mr. John Bernard stated very soft rock, shale, layered.

Mr. Kevin Patton responded it’s soft when it’s exposed when you get into the core of it it’s hard.  It’s a layered rock.  It’s not shale it’s a metamorphic rock.
Mr. John Bernard stated pretty hard to sample and run into an erratic boulder that probably was granite and mistake it for shale.

Mr. Mark Ross stated I’m uncertain about who ran into what and what they’re calling it.  We’re saying it’s possible it could be.  We do know that the bore logs do not represent the site conditions.  I’m actually coming into this in the last month trying to help him out.  So, I really don’t know the history.  Right now we have a very significant problem there that I would like to try and resolve as quickly as possible.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked am I also understanding that you’re now encroaching on County property?

Mr. Mark Ross responded the original easement was 100 feet back.  We had it extended to the ridge line.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked do we have documentation from the County that they’ve granted the 100 foot easement?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded I believe that he submitted the documentation that we do have an easement.

Mr. Mark Ross responded yes, we have all of that documentation is definitely in with the Planning Board.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that came in with the package that…

Mr. John Bernard stated yes we have it in our package, it’s a license agreement with the County.  I don’t know specifically how far back they’re allowed to go.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated the issue is this Board would grant them how far back they’re allowed to go.  This Board would have to tell them how far back to go on the County.  It’s still part of the site plan approval.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and the County is okay if they have to go beyond the 100 feet we can authorize that?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded we can authorize whatever’s in their agreement.  Up to what’s in their agreement. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what’s in the agreement?

Mr. Mark Ross responded I believe it’s right back to the ridge line.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked are you at the ridge line yet?

Mr. Mark Ross responded no, we don’t intend to go to the ridge line because of the ridge 100 foot on two sides easement we don’t want to go anywhere near that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you said 150 feet?  Is that what you said?

Mr. Mark Ross responded sorry, there is a ridge line Ordinance that deals with 50 feet each side of the center line of a ridge and the disruption of it and we simply don’t want to – we’re not there, we don’t want to be there, we don’t need to go there.  We’re staying about 70-80 feet back from it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked maybe I need to ask the question this way just so that if I have to sign off on anything or approve anything I know what I’ve just done.  When we grant you, if we grant you approval to go further back and extend your area of disturbance, you’re going back there to look for this ledge that you say is there?  Is that what you’re going there for?  What are you doing?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked have you tested legitimately to see that there’s a ledge?

Mr. Kevin Patton responded construction has begun on the site and the ledge has been encountered but it’s not in the location that was originally shown on the plans.  The additional area for disturbance is being requested to smoothly blend the boundaries of the disturbance area into the existing slopes. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you’ve gone back what, 30 feet, 100 feet?  How far back have you gone?

Mr. Mark Ross responded we’re actually 160 feet back from the edge of the parking lot.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and how far back in the County property?

Mr. Mark Ross stated that’s it.  It’s 160 feet onto County property yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but I thought we said that 100 feet was allowed. 

Mr. Mark Ross stated this is why I’m sitting here saying there seems to be some confusion.  The original easement was 100 feet…

Mr. John Klarl asked from what point?

Mr. Mark Ross responded from the rear of Mr. Knippenberg’s property, for the easement was 100 feet beyond from the rear of Mr. Knippenberg’s property.  We got to the 100 feet.  That was way back in January and we realized that was still – and that was when we retained Mr. Patton and got some slope analysis done and the materials that we needed to find out what kind of a slope angle repose we could have.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked but you did not encounter the rock ledge at the 100 feet?

Mr. Mark Ross responded we encountered a rock ledge back there which was within that 100 foot scope.  It’s approximately 45 to 50 feet in and that rock ledge had approximately about 17 feet of over burden on it.  There’s a tremendous amount of over burden in this one spot.  Subsequently, Arthur I believe was the gentleman’s name came by from Engineering and we discussed what needed to be done and he told us that we would have to get a County approval to extend the easements back so we could go back and see and figure out what we needed to do and move it further forward.  At which point in time, we got that information, the rest of the information from Mr. Patton and brought him on board in an effort to get the project completed without it being exposed for too long.  Subsequently, brought that information into Code Enforcement and Ken at Code Enforcement was kind with us to put us over to Chris who we also put all the documentation in.  The only additional thing that seem to need be done was the retaining wall which within the documentation the only thing it says in there and when we get to that point the site conditions may say things have to change.  We don’t really know what we have yet, we’re still at this point in time uncertain of where the rock is at the bottom.  You take this stuff from the top down is really part of the problem.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m still confused.  I’m sorry.  You’ve gone back more than you were allowed in the easement?  You’ve gone back to the County and asked for permission to go further back even though you have already gone further back than the easement allowed?

Mr. Mark Ross responded yes, and coordinated with the Town of Cortlandt, not the Engineering Division but with Code Enforcement.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but the County has granted you permission to go further back?

Mr. Mark Ross responded yes.

Mr. John Klarl asked is it written permission?

Mr. Mark Ross responded yes it is written permission.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked do we have that?

Mr. Mark Ross responded you should have it right there.  I can make sure that Mrs. Karen Ramos sends…

Mr. John Bernard asked who’s making the decision to just dig all that over burden out?

Mr. Mark Ross responded mostly nature right now.

Mr. John Bernard asked why wasn’t a decision made to shore the excavation and build your retaining wall?

Mr. Mark Ross responded because it would be over 60 feet of shoring and there’s no possible way of doing that.

Mr. John Bernard asked what do you mean no possible way?

Mr. Mark Ross responded no realistic way to do it on County property, to short property to build a retaining wall.

Mr. John Bernard stated you could go back…how far are you going back with the parking area?  10 feet?  Where the property line.  You’re excavating to increase the parking area.  How far back into that hill are you going?

Mr. Mark Ross responded that’s what I’m saying, right now from the Annsville…

Mr. John Bernard asked I didn’t say how much you’re digging, I said the final project how far back into the hill is the parking area?
Mr. Kevin Patton responded you’re asking what the increase in the flat parking area is?

Mr. John Bernard responded yes.

Mr. Mark Ross responded that’s not expected to change.

Mr. John Bernard stated no unexpected change, how much parking is there?  I know.  I’m asking them and why aren’t you just putting up soldier columns and putting in lagging and then building your retaining wall?  Why are you excavating all that material back on County property?  Why?  I know it’s cheaper.  Now tell me why?

Mr. Mark Ross stated at this point in time what I’ve done is followed the plan, and followed the documentation of what I have.  I have taken the time to come in and speak with the Town of Cortlandt on many occasions.  We have voluntarily…

Mr. John Bernard asked who’s making the decision to remove all that material from County property?  Nature?  Is that what you’re saying?

Mr. Mark Ross responded I would have to say that I am making the decision to remove that material from that property.

Mr. John Bernard asked what’s happening to all that over burden?

Mr. Mark Ross responded is coming down the hill.

Mr. John Bernard asked and going where?

Mr. Mark Ross responded right now most of it we’re trying to keep on the property but we can’t really can’t keep it all, there’s not enough room at the bottom.

Mr. John Bernard asked is that material speaking to the geologist, is that material bank run?

Mr. Kevin Patton responded it is very bank run.

Mr. John Bernard stated that’s what it looks like from the soils report.  It looks like it’s premiere bank run.  What are you doing with it?

Mr. Kevin Patton responded County is taking it.

Mr. John Bernard asked the County is taking it?  Where to?  For what?

Mr. Mark Ross responded the ash pit on the other side.

Mr. John Bernard asked they’re using that to cap the dump?
Mr. Mark Ross responded correct.

Mr. John Bernard asked so no one is getting paid for that material?

Mr. Mark Ross responded no, as a matter of fact we’re paying to have it hauled there.

Mr. John Bernard stated amazing. 

Mr. Mark Ross stated the little bit that we’ve had to take off so far just to get everything under control.

Mr. John Bernard asked so we’re giving that material to the County?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how destabilized is the slope now?

Mr. John Bernard stated it’s totally destabilized.

Mr. Mark Ross responded the bottom part of the slope definitely.  I would say approximately 45 or 55 feet into the property where there’s a huge cliff of bedrock which is approximately about 65 feet high over a period of a span depth of about 35 feet.  This is a very significant cliff so to speak behind there.  The amount of over burden that was on this in vertical distance down near the bottom was at least 38 feet.  I don’t know where the bottom is yet.  As you’re excavating that out and that fine material that you’re discussing at this point in time and you have that much over burden…

Mr. John Bernard stated isn’t it time for somebody to just back up and do an actual boring and find out before you dig to China.  Wouldn’t that make sense?  You don’t know where the bottom is yet and you’re still digging?

Mr. Mark Ross responded at that point in time what happens is the hill does start to separate and it does keep coming down and you do hit a point where…

Mr. John Bernard stated I was out there again today.

Mr. Mark Ross stated and it will continue to come down.  The surface will continue to come down until it gets back to the surface of the rock cliff that is in behind there to get that under control.  Yes, there are a variety of issues there.  There is no soil in a sense upper soil stabilization in place and it’s fine.  Nothing up there is moving at all.  
Mr. Steven Kessler asked when you say “up there” what are you?

Mr. Mark Ross responded the upper section, above the cliff that you can see the rock face on.  At this point in time our stabilization erosion control measures are pretty much…

Mr. John Bernard stated wait, there is no stabilization up above.  You’ve removed the trees and the tree roots.  There’s no stabilization of that material up above.  How can you say that?

Mr. Mark Ross responded we’re keeping within the natural angle of repose.
Mr. John Bernard stated you’re awfully close to not being in the angle of repose.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you’ve also taken down trees that help stabilize the slope.

Mr. Mark Ross responded yes, that is correct. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so how can you think that the upper portion is stable when all the trees have been denuded from the property?

Mr. Mark Ross responded considering the scope of the weather over the last week, that is the most stable part of the entire hill wherever it is excavated right now.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I have to cut in here because it’s getting late and we’re obviously not going to approve this tonight. 

Mr. Mark Ross responded we’re looking forward to a site meeting is what we’re looking for. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I don’t know what that’s going to do quite honestly?  From my perspective, no disrespect, but I think we need to have an independent engineer paid for by the applicant, go out there and report back to this Board what they think needs to be done to stabilize, number one because we’re certainly about to get into April showers and bad things can happen there and tell us what we need to do first to stabilize and what in his professional opinion needs to be done to finish the job if it’s possible.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated yes Steve, as a matter of fact in our Stop Work Order, the letter that accompanied the Stop Work Order we asked that very information.  When I spoke to Mark, you had mentioned that you would have that information for us by this meeting?  The design plan.

Mr. Mark Ross responded this actually is Mr. Patton.  He is the engineer that we do have retained for this project.  When you say an independent engineer, do we need another one?
Mr. Ed Vergano responded we need a design plan.  It’s in my letter.  The Stop Work Order letter talks the site for the need for a design plan to show how you’re going to finish the project up.

Mr. John Klarl asked to day have we received the design plan?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ve already had input from people from Knippenberg’s side of the camp and we’re just getting deeper into the hole with the way they’re going about it.  I’m inclined to agree with Steve that we need somebody independent of Knippenberg and his project to go out and look and tell us what we need to know.  We want it written up so that it becomes part of the record and after we get that report, of course stabilization is important in the meantime, but we can’t make any approvals before we get a clearer sense of what really needs to be done there.  We’re going to go around and around and we cannot answer these questions tonight.  We just can’t.  What I’d like to do is entertain a motion to refer this back, you go and you see staff, they’ll tell you exactly what we want and I want it written.  I want a report from somebody else who is not connected with Knippenberg and then we can look at it.  We can assess, we can decide what we’ve got to do but this is not working for me because we’re just spinning around here going nowhere.  That’s what I’d like to see.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairperson I’ll move to request an independent engineer evaluation be performed at the site to determine as you indicated what the necessary fix is to stabilize the slope at the applicant’s expense, seconded.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated on question, just for the record, but that was requested in the February 17th Stop Work Order, the letter that was sent to the applicant.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked was it an independent person you asked for?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated then you need to follow up what was in there.

Mr. John Bernard asked did we hire an independent engineer?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded we asked them to hire one.

Mr. John Bernard asked how can we have the applicant hire an independent engineer?  They can pay for it but they can’t hire him.  Do we have a list of engineers?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.  They can pay for it.

Mr. John Bernard stated pick one and have the applicant – send them a bill.  See how fast we can get an engineer out there and I’ll still meet with you on Thursday even though it won’t do any good and even though we can’t really comment on anything from an engineering but maybe we can discuss stabilization during the period that it’s going to take to get some kind of a look at what’s happening.  Fair enough?

Mr. Mark Ross responded yes, let’s start there.

Mr. John Bernard stated let’s start there, 5:00 p.m. Thursday.

Mr. Mark Ross 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, earlier if possible.

Mr. John Bernard stated I’ll probably be there earlier but I think the full comport won’t be there until 5:00 p.m.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated let’s clarify one point; I have no problem with them submitting the design plan for our review that I have no problem with for our review and approval.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let me just stop.  I don’t even know what a design plan would accomplish at this point because they’ve already submitted several others.  This is what I’m saying.  Why don’t they just do this after the report comes in, it’s assessed and analyzed then we get the design plan based on somebody else’s input.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated ordinarily in the situation of a design plan is based on an as-built.  It’s prepared out in the field, the design plan is submitted to our office for our review.  I have no problem with that procedure.  

Mr. Mark Ross stated for example the retaining wall when we go to construct the retaining wall we’ll be working with Mr. Vergano based on the site conditions that we do encounter. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated maybe I just need to be clear.  I’m not clear.  A design plan means you’re designing something doesn’t it?  You’re designing something or not?

Mr. Mark Ross responded no, following the designs that we have here.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked didn’t we just admit that those designs are flawed?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded the original designs are flawed because there is erroneous field information but with correct field information the design can be made correct.  I’ll work this out with the applicant.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked with correct field input, where is that coming from?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded I would give him a protocol to follow to make sure that they ascertain the correct field information.  Apparently, that has not been done to date.
Mr. Robert Foley asked this would be the new engineer that we will pick that they will pay for?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded no, apparently not.

Mr. John Bernard responded yes, that’s exactly what’ll happen.  We get an independent engineer, they will have another company come out and do some proper borings so that we can identify what’s there to the best of anyone’s ability to determine that and based on what they find they’ll be able to say “yes, you can build a retaining wall 80 feet high.”

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked that’s the point where the design plan comes in, at that point?  Or do you get the design plan and then you call in somebody?

Mr. John Bernard responded I don’t know what we’re talking about the design plan.  We need an engineer to tell us what’s there so that we know what can be built.  Right now they’re digging holes to see what’s there.  They’re just excavating to see what’s there.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated my point is simply if you tell me you’re creating a design plan, you’re designing something that will be acted upon in some way to produce whatever it is you’ve designed.  My point is if the design plans have been flawed up to now why don’t we wait until we get an assessment from somebody else that we can then incorporate into the design plan.  That’s a simple question and it seems like we don’t want to go there.  What’s the problem?

Mr. Kevin Patton responded the problem is the inherent nature of the site.  There’s abrupt changes in the bedrock that are very hard to find even if you did a very intensive boring program there.  We’ve gotten a lot more accurate and meaningful information based on the excavation work that’s been done to date.  The disturbance is being done in an area that doesn’t impact adjacent property owners other than the County who’s in agreement with the work that’s being done and I really think the only practical way to move the project forward and come up with a long term, stable, final design is to essentially design it as you go.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you want our approval to design carte blanche?

Mr. Mark Ross responded not a carte blanche approval.  We would like to work with Ed Vergano.  Everything would be approved by Ed or somebody that you may have that would be involved in the project with their input of course would be extremely important.  That would need to be put in because of course two minds, three minds, four minds the more minds on a project the better off they are.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked can we also make sure we contact the County to see if they’re fully aware of what’s going on?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded absolutely.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated the copy of this agreement with the County is not even dated.

Mr. Mark Ross responded I apologize.  All of this was done very quickly but I can make sure that you get a full copy of everything from Mrs. Karen Ramos if you’d like.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked is there some kind of quid pro quo agreement with the County about the excavation?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the one in the file is the same one they have.  It’s not dated. 

Mr. Mark Ross stated I will confirm that they get…

Mr. John Bernard asked who’s in control of the work at the site?  

Mr. Mark Ross responded I guess it would be me.

Mr. John Bernard asked how long have you been in control of the site?

Mr. Mark Ross responded I would say since January.

Mr. John Bernard stated you were on site when the rain storms came before we had the colder weather and you were watching silt across the road for at least two days because the siltation barriers weren’t installed correctly.

Mr. Mark Ross responded the siltation barriers, yes one of them ended up leaking a little bit underneath.

Mr. John Bernard stated not a little bit, it had a swath of siltation water at a very good rate of flow for at least two days that was at least 10 feet wide and I think wider and it was washing…Is that not correct?

Mr. Mark Ross responded that is correct.  We had it put in by a gentleman who’s certified to do that and he maintains it as well.  

Mr. John Bernard stated you can say that but the problem is it didn’t work.

Mr. Mark Ross responded yes and that was an abnormal rain.  

Mr. John Bernard stated but we’re seeing a lot of abnormalities to what’s been going on there so you can understand the sense of concern with continuing with this.  

Mr. Mark Ross responded I can understand the sense of concern yes and I’ve also seen a lot of abnormalities in what is underneath the surface and that’s why I agree with you on that.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s exactly why a Stop Work Order was issued.  Just to move this along, let’s meet out at the site, let’s go over some of the particulars, we can expand a little bit on this concept that we’re looking for.

Mr. John Bernard asked and Joel Greenberg will be there too, since he’s the “architect/engineer” who signed off on this originally?

Mr. Ed Vergano asked will Joel be there?

Mr. Mark Ross responded I can try to find out.  I do not know.

Mr. John Bernard stated I think it would be best if you had him there.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m surprised he didn’t stick around for this.

Mr. Robert Foley stated also the engineer you hire, the independent engineer he would be a geotechnical expert?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded we asked him to bring the geotechnical expert.  That’s why this gentleman is here with Mark.

Mr. John Bernard stated we need a civil engineer.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked can I ask a question about this amendment?  Usually the County official won’t sign until the County attorney’s office has approved the document as to form and has signed it.  I’m puzzled by the fact that there is no signature for the County attorney’s office.

Mr. Mark Ross responded I will make sure that you have that in full.  I’ll make sure that’s in the file.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked is that on a separate piece of paper?

Mr. Mark Ross responded I believe I probably just dropped off the wrong one.  I’m sorry.  We actually drove down and got it signed in Rockland.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you will also contact the County?  Maybe they’ll want to send an engineer there as well.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know where we are but I know I’m still not terribly clear on what happened at this point.  Until I’m clear on what has transpired, as far as I’m concerned, I’m done.  I want from both our own staff and from you to get a clear sense and I think the Board deserves it too of what has happened, how are we going to fix it and who’s going to fix it and then maybe we can get some approvals.  But, I’m not signing off for anything that is all this fuzzy in my head about what’s going on over there.  By the way, you’re fairly close to my neighborhood so I’m probably more interested than the other people would imagine about this particular craziness going on on that site.  
Mr. Steven Kessler asked can we just restate the motion?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I think the motion was to hire an independent engineer to perform an independent analysis paid for by the applicant to determine the situation and make a recommendation to correct the slope problem, the conditions on this site.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and also contact the County to make sure they’re fully aware.

Mr. John Klarl stated staff can do that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we want it part of the motion, it’s not an aside, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
                    e. Memo dated January 22, 2010 from Thomas Wood, Esq., Town Attorney regarding potential new Planning Board Policies that will be the subject of a Town Board Public Hearing on February 9, 2010.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t believe that took place, did it?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it did.  I don’t believe there was any comments.  I don’t believe anyone commented on it at the Town Board public hearing so they adjourned it to March 9th.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we all have these policies that they have presented to us to comment upon.  We possibly probably could have done these comments a little earlier.  I just didn’t realize that we were supposed to comment on them.  
Mr. Ivan Kline asked do you want to go person by person or section by section?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I think I’d like to go section by section that way we will be sure that we’ve covered everything and we don’t have to come back and plug up anything.  Section 1 is there, is there anybody who has any comment on section 1 regarding the procedures and the fact that the law will provide for Planning and Zoning Board meetings of one public session and one work session.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked are you working from the memo?  I’m working from the Law that was distributed.  I think that was the more definitive statement.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded we were presented with a document that came from the Town’s attorney.  It’s on the agenda this way.  Why would I now switch to some other document to comment on?  We’re commenting on what the Supervisor asked us to comment on.  Why would we switch off and go to some other.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there’s two different documents which is probably my fault.  I e-mailed the Local Law which is the cover letter is dated February 9th, probably last month at the meeting you had something dated January 22nd.  In essence, they’re the same thing but the letters and numbers cause confusion.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but the language is different in the Local Law and I think that’s what we have to…

Mr. Ivan Kline stated the Local Law is what’s before the Town Board.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know what’s before the Town Board, what I know is what we were given to look at and to comment on.  Why am I switching.

Mr. John Klarl stated also Chris gave an e-mail.  Chris you also dished out an e-mail on February 24th which says “please be prepared with comments.”

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know anything about the e-mail of February 24th.

 Mr. Steven Kessler asked I guess the question is, John, should we be commenting on Wood’s letter or should we be commenting on the proposed Town Law?
Mr. John Klarl responded it looks like the reference here is to the memo but there’s been a subsequent to the memo.  Chris handed out the Local Law…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked this is my question because I don’t really want to belabor this, does our agenda item say that we’re supposed to comment on what Chris produced or on the memo dated January 22nd from Thomas Wood, Esq.?

Mr. John Klarl responded that’s what I said the agenda says to respond to that memo.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think that’s merely because nobody revised the wording of the agenda.  The Town Board has before us a Local Law, that’s what it’s holding a hearing on and that’s what it will vote on.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you know what I didn’t get that.  I’m working with what I got.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked Chris, do you have another copy of that?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no I gave mine to…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we should work with what is in the agenda and if there’s some other things that are coming out that are tangential to whatever the Town Law is it can be covered at the same time but I think we should all be working from the same document and the document is the one that is identified in the agenda.  
Mr. Ivan Kline stated I’ll do it by topic.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated my concern is that we’re commenting on a letter but actually what they’re going to vote on is what’s in the Law and the letter does not comport exactly to what’s being proposed that the Town’s going to vote on. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the point is that if we give our opinions on this particular memo from the Town attorney then they can use our comments to help or guide them in whatever they are producing via the Town Local Laws, or the Codes, I don’t see that it’s all that different.  We talk about what their proposals were and this is what they gave to us to comment on, they can use that as guidance in terms of whatever they want to formulate in terms of Law.  I don’t want to switch now documents because that’s not what’s in the agenda.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated let me start with the first topic because there’s a very big difference between the memo and the Law and this is why it’s important to look at the Law.  The memo says under ‘Board Procedures’: “the Planning and Zoning Boards will conduct one work session and one public meeting per month.”  Now that’s something we do.  The Law says they have to be on separate evenings.  That raises a separate question and that’s what I commented on at the work session.  To back up a step, my first comment on this would be I don’t believe it should be necessary for the Town Board to pass any Local Law on this subject and that I think it should be up to the Planning Board to determine what it believes is necessary and appropriate for meetings.  Steve and I were discussing before that if you take this Law as written it would be improper to have a second meeting if we felt we needed a special meeting because the Law says you can only have one meeting in a month.  Are we really going to be hamstrung by that.  You can’t have more, you can’t have less.  Which makes the point, why don’t they just leave it to the Planning Board to decide when it should have meetings and how often it needs to have meetings.  Topic one on ‘Board Procedures.’

Mr. Steven Kessler asked do we have unanimity on that point?
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated no because I don’t understand where you’re coming from.  They’re talking about what they are proposing for the Local Law not what’s already there but whatever they are proposing.  This says we’re to “review and summarize the contents of the proposed Local Law for which you will be scheduling public hearings.  The following is a brief summary of what those Local Laws will contain.”  Where are we going with this?  Maybe the current Law says something, I’m not looking at it so I don’t know but maybe it says one thing and they’re talking about moving and changing these to something else.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I don’t think there is a current Law on this.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated what they’re actually proposing in terms of the actual wording of the Law.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked does it say a proposal?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded of course it’s a proposal because they haven’t voted on it yet.  John, is it not accurate that when the Town Board has a hearing on a Local Law it puts out the content of the proposed Local Law in advance?

Mr. John Klarl responded absolutely.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated here’s what I’d like to propose since some of us has seen this and are ready to go on it and others of us have not than maybe what we need to do is to try to find a way to deal with this other than right here now because then those of us who haven’t seen it are at a disadvantage when we have to sit here on the fly, decide whether or not we are agreeing with some of these things.

Mr. John Klarl stated maybe we should amend the agenda item tonight to talk about the review of Mr. Wood’s memo plus Mr. Kehoe’s e-mail of February 24th with the proposed Local Law and people can look at that and submit their written comments to Chris and maybe he can distill the comments.  Maybe if the agenda had said both the memo and the Local Law we’d all be on the same page. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated well we aren’t obviously.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think the general comment that I just made frankly applies whether you’re looking at Tom Wood’s memo or your looking at the language of the Local Law.  The point is the same.  I don’t believe they need to have or should have a Local Law that dictates to the Planning Board when we can meet and how often we meet. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated as I said at the work session, I think there are aspects in here that talk about as prescribed by State Law, I don’t think we should pick and choose what aspects of the State Law we like and want to Codify in this Local Law.  If we’re going to follow SEQRA then we need to know exactly: is this consistent with SEQRA?  And, everything we do should be consistent with SEQRA.  There are things in here that seem to be very specifically say “shall be as prescribed by the State Law” for certain things that seem to be consistent with the agenda but not consistent with other things that are in SEQRA.  John, maybe I ask you, can you make sure that these things comport with – what I’m saying is can you be sure that these things comport with State Law and the things that don’t say “as prescribed by State Law” that they do comport with SEQRA as well?  For example, when you say that “if an application does not appear on the Board agenda with new additional information for a period of one year or more except those applications awaiting submission of DEIS said time period may not be extended by the Board.”  Is that consistent with SEQRA?  Or the New York State Town Law?
Mr. Ivan Kline stated I don’t think it would be SEQRA.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated or New York State Town Law, whatever is the applicable authority.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think what we’ll have to do is maybe try to e-mail me some comments in the next couple of days and I’ll give something to the Town Board.  But, is the general feeling of the majority of the Board that you don’t want a work session and a meeting on separate days?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t know that that’s a general feeling.  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated my feeling is it shouldn’t be dictated by the Town Board that if the Planning Board feels that it’s appropriate we’ll effectuate that. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we have had separate work sessions on special days to deal with one or two specific agenda items.  We’ve had that.  We’ve had work sessions where we’ve dealt with, I forgot some of the applications, it wasn’t a public hearing it was a work session and we’ve done that.

Ms. Susan Todd stated Valeria.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Valeria exactly, thank you. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated a special meeting.  In other words, the way this is written if we’re limited by a new Law to one work session per month and one public meeting per month.  Suppose we have to have a special meeting that month on a particularly complicated FEIS.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the suggestion then would be to change the language and not prohibit a third or fourth meeting. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you stick with the words “at least” and you’re done “should have at least one this, one that.” That would then allow us to have 20 meetings if we wanted.  I think the point here is that there are times when, and it’s more than these special times for Valeria or for some other large project that we need more time than we have in the one hour we allot ourselves before our regular public meeting and I think this may be an attempt to get us to meet so that we’ll have more time and we won’t feel as pressured or as rushed.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I don’t feel rushed.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated well some of you don’t feel rushed others of us do and I think we need to be looking for whatever it is that can bring us together and make it as comfortable for everyone as it is for one or two or three people.  We haven’t ever tried it.  The fact that we’ve had it for all these years as one big, grand meeting, the work session and then the public meeting doesn’t mean that we couldn’t do as good or as better job by breaking it into two meetings and we’ve never tried it so we don’t really have a way of assessing that somehow the way we’re doing it is the best way.

Mr. John Klarl stated given that the hour is late and given that I can understand the confusion of the Chair because the Chair is focusing on one document and certain of the members tonight have brought another document maybe we can have people e-mail Chris comments about any comments on the memo and any comments on the draft Local Law that Chris e-mailed February 24th and maybe we can distill those comments for the Board.  Obviously the Chair is looking at a different document…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I agree with that, I have no trouble doing that but I’m going to pitch for a delay on this because I don’t think we’re in any condition, or shape in any way to reach -- but we’re on a deadline to get comments in by Friday.  I don’t think you’re going to get cogent comments.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked is it essential that the Town Board votes on this?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked why are we under pressure on this all of a sudden?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded your recommendation could be that you would like them to adjourn the hearing until April.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that would be my recommendation right because I don’t feel comfortable with this. 
Mr. Robert Foley stated I would agree too because there’s a lot of thought on the possibility of the special meeting or having a longer work session on the one night but if not all of us can be there, I can’t, and then what happens with special meetings if we’re dictated by a Law that you can only have one regular meeting and one work session. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated somehow in my mind I don’t interpret that as you can’t have any other meetings.  I think that the term you will have this is a way that they phrase it in legalese.  “You will have…” they don’t mean that you can’t have any others.  I think that it means you will have at least this.  In any event, I’m willing to say we table this for little bit, is what I suggested from the very beginning because I know we don’t have enough time to really sit and thrash this out and really come to hopefully a consensus among us.  We just don’t have the time.  So, I asked from before, that we not consider this in the way we’re doing it.  I’m ready to entertain a motion that 1) we ask the Town to adjourn their consideration for this Law to another date, maybe another month won’t be as disastrous as some might imagine and then we will have, I think what I’d like to have was not bring this on the agenda again but have a separate meeting, it can be a work session type of thing but we have a different kind of meeting.  I just don’t think this is the place for us to be sitting here.  This is why you have a work session, to work out things.  This is not appropriate for a regular public meeting to be doing this.  I just don’t think it is.  The public can come to our work session and hear us talk but I think we should have a work session, talk about this stuff, then come up with some thoughts.  We can, in the meantime, send the comments just in case that they don’t adjourn, at least you have those comments and you’ve worked them out.  We can come to our own meeting with our own comments and make them and see what we can arrive at as far as some consensus.  Maybe we’ll have consensus on some things and not on others.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I agree with that Loretta because next month’s meeting is no better than this month’s meeting.  We can’t do the same thing again next month.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked so what are you suggesting?  We have a special meeting to talk about this?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated or have all of the written comments in and organized and then start the work session earlier next month if you don’t want to have a special meeting. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we should.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I still think it needs to be on the agenda.  We just don’t show up and talk about things that are not on the agenda.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t want it on the agenda so that we need to have this level of discussion.  We have plenty of things on the agenda that after we’ve had a work session we come up here and we make a motion on ‘x’, ‘y’, or ‘z’.  Let’s do it in the same way.  We’re not to have the actual working out of the thing here. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but Loretta, if people want to make comments on the question, they’re certainly entitled to do that whether you think that the discussion should be limited or not it is the right of every Board member to put on the record during on the question aspect of the motion to say what they want to say. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so we could end up doing what we’re doing now.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated believe me I’m not threatening that that’s what’s going to happen, I’m not suggesting that it should happen, I’m just saying that just because we say we’re going to work it out at the work session and vote on it here it doesn’t mean that people won’t have some additional comments to make about why they are voting just like we did tonight when we talked about Heinzer.  It was the same thing tonight, people went down the line here saying why they were or were not voting. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there’s a lot here and if each person wants to pick it apart for each specific section, one by one, by one we need at least 2 ½ hours just to get through that.  I don’t know that we have that kind of time.  We don’t have the luxury the way we’re holding our meetings to do it that way.  I think we need to go home, decide what we like, don’t like, put it on paper, give it to Chris, so he has that just in case the Town Board says “we’re going to go forward.”  He’s got what we had but we can come together again and necessarily because we don’t know what each of us is thinking.  When you go home and send your paper in to him, how do I know what you said?  How do I know what you feel?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded I think we’re all saying the same thing.  I think we said we’ll get the comments in to Chris, Chris said he’ll distill the information and try and represent it next time. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated is there a first step that we have to vote on, on asking for an adjournment?  How do we word that with what Tom is suggesting?
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I think we can just have a motion that we all vote on that we’d like for them to consider adjourning that matter in their sessions until April and then we can sit down here and create another date for ourselves to have a work session where we come in.  This is what’s on the work session, I don’t want another bunch of stuff flooding the work session. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated Counsel can explain to the Town Board Counsel the reasons why, the importance of this and the time needed.  So we don’t have to put that in a motion?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think what Bob is saying is that we’ve got to get this information back to the Town attorney and the Town Board to explain why we want it to go to April.

Mr. Robert Foley asked do we have to word that in the motion or can that be verbally explained?

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think it should be made clear that we have some serious issues with some of these proposals and would like more time to collect our thoughts on it.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and respectfully ask them to postpone their decision. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated again, that needs to come in some kind of a letter or paragraph or two.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked how should we word the motion?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s a simple motion Bob, we’re asking them…

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I move that we instruct staff to ask the Town Board to defer any decisions on this proposed Local Law until at least at our April hearing because of the fact that the members of the Planning Board do have some concerns about aspects of the proposal Local Law and would like more time to be heard on it, seconded.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I think there was some confusion among the Board about whether we should be responding to the letter that was sent…

Mr. Robert Foley stated the memo or the Law.

Ms. Susan Todd continued and maybe in our comments that we make we can do both.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I understand the confusion and that was my fault but I think from this point forward the comments should all be on the Local Law.  I’ll make sure that everyone gets the Local Law on both e-mail and hard copy.

Mr. John Klarl stated the point is that the Town Board has now moved beyond the Wood memo into a Local Law presentation.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated and knowing how careful the Town Board is I’m sure they’re not going to mind doing the adjournment.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a motion to the Town Board, a secondary one that has to do with the fact – did you actually make that a motion or are you just putting it out as an idea because you need to make it a motion. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated that was a on the question.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I’ll accept that as an addendum to my motion. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that will be worked in to my memo to the Town Board explaining the confusion between the two different documents.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so that would be your secondary to do with respect to us looking at the Law as opposed to the memo and now we need to agree on a time when we can get together and go over this Law and make whatever comments that we need to make as a Board as opposed to separate individuals.  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated you can’t do it that way unless you advertise it and do it in a public place where the public can attend.  You can’t have a meeting on private property. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s fine we would advertise it as a special work session. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked how much time do we need to make sure that everybody gets it?
Mr. John Klarl responded 72 hours.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let’s look at the calendar and pick a date.  What’s a good date for people?

Mr. Robert Foley responded anything but a Wednesday for me.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated after the 18th.  Do you want to try doing it on the 25th, which is a Thursday?  Susan can’t do it until after the 18th.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked Thursday the 25th?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I can’t do it, I have to go to California for a wedding on the 25th.  I’m leaving the 25th.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked when will you be back.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded I’m just going for the weekend.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so you can do it Monday, Tuesday of the following week? 29th, 30th.

Mr. Ivan Kline responded that gets into Holidays.  That gets into Passover.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think Passover is on Monday.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked what about Tuesday the 23rd?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a joint Board meeting on the 23rd.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked we do?

Mr. Robert Foley asked were we notified?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked didn’t they announce that they?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I wasn’t aware that they’d rescheduled…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated if that’s the case it would be good to meet before the 23rd.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated 7:00 p.m. is their meeting.  How many of us can meet before 7:00 p.m.?

Mr. Ed Vergano stated a day before that day.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the day before is a Monday.  If anything has to be presented that doesn’t give them sufficient time.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I wouldn’t think that you’re necessarily going to be presenting something about this at the tri-Board meeting on the 23rd.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated no, I’m not talking about the tri-Board meeting.  What I’m saying is – you’re right because if we wanted to come to some sort of agreement, or conclusion, or consensus on specific items as we go down on the Law.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s still two weeks before the April 6th meeting. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked the tri-Board’s meeting is on the 23rd?  When does it run until?

Mr. Robert Foley responded it’s 7:00 p.m. until 9:00 p.m. I don’t know?
Mr. Steven Kessler asked you want to schedule it for 9:00, after the tri-Board meeting?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked will that help you to do it then, at 9:00 p.m.?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated see if you can get the Supervisor’s conference room to discuss it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked what happens if the tri-Board’s not then?  

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded we’ll make it 7:00 p.m.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated it would be nice to do it the same night.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so if it’s that night we’ll do it at 9:00 p.m., and if it’s not that night are we going to meet at 7:00 p.m.?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, why not.  It seems like everyone can make it.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what if the tri-Board’s the 24th?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded then make it the 24th.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated let’s try and pair it up with the tri-Board.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what you are simply saying is that we attach our meeting if it’s either one of those two days we attach it to the tri-Board?

Mr. Ivan Kline asked if we end up on a stand-alone night because we can’t hook it up to tri-Board can we start it at 7:30 p.m., not 7:00 p.m.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated on either of those two nights if we end up being alone on the 23rd or the 24th you want it to start at 7:30 p.m.?  

Mr. Ivan Kline responded yes.

Mr. John Klarl stated Chris will also send us an e-mail.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated okay so the 23rd or the 24th.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded we think.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the earliest it would be on the 24th, the Wednesday would be the 7:30 p.m. not before?  On Wednesday’s I have a problem up until about 7:00 p.m. at least.  I’m committed.  So what time would this?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded we said we would start at 7:30 p.m. if we end up being a stand alone we’ll start at 7:30 p.m.  Because we have no control if it’s a tri-Board meeting it’s already designed to start at 7:00 p.m. so we don’t have any control over that. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we know what the motion is so: with all in favor saying "aye."  We’ve already agreed on the meeting nights and that’s done.
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ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn.
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, APRIL 6, 2010
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